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Financial calendar

Annual general meeting
14th October 2010

Dwvidends

Final dividend
Ex-dwv date
Record date
Payment date

15th September 2010
17th September 2010
18th Qctober 2010

Interim dividend {provisional)
Ex-div date 9th March 2011
Record date 11th March 2011
Payment date 11th April 2011

Announcement of results
Annual results July
Hall year results  January

The intenim resulis and the preliminary announcerment of the full
year § results are pubbshed on our website, which 15 at www
renishaw com promptly after they have been released at the
Financial Services Authority
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Facsimile +44 {0)871 384 2100

Website www shareview €0 uk

UK calls to 0871 numbers are charged at 8p per minute from a BT
landline Other telephony providers' costs may vary



Results at a glance

2010
Revenue (Em) 181.6
Adjusted operating profit (£Em)” 28.1
Adjusted profit before taxation (£Em)* 28.7
Adjusted eamings per share (pence)* 31.6
Dividend per share (pence) 17.6
Statutory
Profit before tax (£m) 271
Basic earnings per share (pence) 29.3

2009
1712
6.0
88
9.3
776

4.7
49

change

+6%
+368%
+226%
+240%
+127%

+477%
+498%

Adjusted figures are staled after excluding exceptional items, these being an impairment write down in 2010 and redundancy costs in 2009



4 Directors

The board of directors

Sir David McMurtry, CBE, RD!, FREng, CEng, FIMechE,
Charman and Chief Executive, age 70, was employed by Rolls-
Royce plc, Bristol, for 17 years, latterly holding the positions of
Deputy Chief Designer and Assistant Chief of Engine Design of
all Rolls-Royce engines manufactured at Filton in Bristol After
inventing the onginal probe in the early 1970s, Sir David founded
Rerushaw 1n 1973 with John Deer His CBE was awarded “for
services to Science and Technology™ and he was apponted

a Royal Designer for Industry (RDI} n 1989 He 15 a visiting
Professor of Huddersfield University and has been awarded

an honorary Doctorate of Engineering at the University of
Birrmingham and honorary degrees of Doctor of Engineering at
Heriot-Watt University the University of Bristol and the University
of Bath He has also been awarded an honorary fellowship at
Cardifi University Sir David 1s a Chartered Engineer, a Fellow of
the Insutute of Mechamical Engineers, a Fellow of the American
Society of Manufactunng Engineers and a Fellow of the Royal
Academy of Engneering In addition to his role as Chairman

and Chief Executive, Sir Dawid also has responsibiity for group
technology and 1s charr of the Nomunation committee

John Deer, Daputy Charrman, age 72, traned as a mechanical
engineer and worked for Rolls-Royce ple, Bristol, from 1860
1o 1974 He was Managing Director of Renishaw from 1974
to 1989, primarily involved in the commercial direction of

the Group, with particular emphasis on marketing and the
estabhshment of the Group s wholly-owned subsidiares in
the USA, Ireland, Japan, Germany, France and italy John
and Sir David McMurtry were members of the four-man team
of Renishaw engineers honoured with the MacRobert Award
in 1987 John 1s responsible for group manufacturing and 1s
chairman of the overseas marketing subsidiaries

Ben Taylor, CEng, FIMechE, Assistant Chief Executive, age
61, has been involvad in the field of metrology all his working
Iife, after graduating in mechanical engineenng and design

from Pennsylvania State University Before joining Renishaw

inc as President in 1985, he was the Director of Engingenng at
Sheffield Measurement, USA Ben was appomnied to the Board
of Rerishaw plc in 1987 and is responsible for group marketing,
international operations, human resources and group qualty
Ben also reports to the board on corporate socal responsibility
matters He serves on various metrology committeas and cther
professional associations and 1s a Chartered Engineer, a fellow
of the Institute of Mechanical Engineers and a Liveryman of The
Worshipful Company of Scientic Instrument Makers

Allen Roberts, FCA, Group Finance Direcior, age 61,15 a
Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants \n England and
Wales Before joining Rerishaw in 1979, he was employed for
11 years by Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co He was appointed a
director in 1880 Allen heads group finance, business systems
and Wotton Travel Lid

Geoff McFarland, Group Engineerning Director, age 42, has a
degree In mechanical engingerng, and 15 a visiting professor
at Bath University and an honorary professor at Heriot-Watt
University After working in the medical device and electronic
manufacturing sectors, Geoff joined Renishaw's research
faciity n Edinburgh in 1994, before moving to Renishaw's
headguarters to become Drector and General Manager of the
CMM product ine  Geoff was apponted to the Board »n July
2002 He heads the group engineering function and 15 also
responsible for group IP and patents Geoif 1S a non-executive
director of Delcam plc




Joe McGeehan, CBE, FIEE, FREng, non-exacutive director,
age 64, 1s Managing Director of Toshiba Research Lid
Telecommunications Research Laboratory, Bnstol After
obtaning the degrees of BEng and PhD in electrnical and
elecironic engineering from the University of Liverpool, he
spent several years involved in industnal research before
entering academia Since 1985, he has held a number of senior
positions at the University of Bnstel In 2003 he was awarded
the degree of DEng by the University of Liverpoo! for hus major
contribution to mobile communications research, much of which
has formed the basis of international standards He 15 a Fellow
of the Institution of Electncal Engineers and a Fellow of the
Royat Academy of Engineering Joe was apponted a director in
January 2001

Terry Garthwaite, FCA, non-executive director, age 63, is

a chartered accountant who after guahfying, joined Price
Waternhouse in London He held a number of senior finance
posiions within Foseco pic including Director of Corporate
Finance, prior 1o spending eleven years as Group Finance
Drrecter at the multinational engineering group Senior plc e s
a non-exegcutive director of Brammer plc and Wilmington Group
plc Terry was appointad a director of Renishaw plc in July 2003
and 1s char of the Audit committee

Dawvid Snowden, FCA, non-executiva direclor, age 73, was

a pariner at KPMG for 25 years, latterly acting as Senior Partner
for KPMG in South Wales Dawid was appointed a director of
the Company in July 2003 and 1s the charr of the Remuneration
committee

Bill Whiteley, FCMA, the senior independent non-executive
drrector, age 61 was, until hus retirement in May 2008, the chief
executive of Rotork plc, where he had been a director for 24
years During this period, Bill managed Rotork plc ¢ business
during a penod of major expansion, both geographicatly and in
product hnes Bill 1s chairman of Spirax-Sarco Engineering plc
and Hill and Smith Holdings plc and a non-executive drector
of Brammer plc He has been awarded an honorary degree

of Doctor of Engineering at the University of Bath Bill was
apponted a director of the Company in June 2008

Audit committee Nomunation committee
Terry Garthwaite {Chaw) {with effect from 26th July 2010)
Joe McGeehan Sir Dawvid McMurtry (Char)
Dawnd Snowden Terry Garthwaite
Bill whiteley Joe McGeehan
Dawvid Snowden
Remuneration committee Bill Whiteley

{with effect from 26th July 2010)
Dawvid Snowden (Chair)

Tery Garthwaite

Joe McGeehan

Bit Whileley




6 Charman’s statement

Making a world of difference

| am very pleased to announce the results for the
year to 30th June 2010.

This year has been characterised by a welcome
return to growth, with an accelerating order
iIntake culminating in record final quarter sales.




OPERATING RESULTS

Revenues continued 1o increase strongly during the second half
oi the year and amounied {0 a 57% increase over the
comparable period N 2009 and 46% over revenues in the fust
half of the year This was supported by a superb pericrmance by
our manufactunng teams Total revenues for the year were

£181 6m (2009 £171 2m), which includes a currency benefit of
£8 1m when compared with the previous year's exchange rates

Geographically, there was a comparative reduction in turnover in
continental Europe and the UK, but modest growth in the
Americas and particularly strong growth in the Far East, largely
China, and other territories, including India

After reporting a first half year operating profit of £8 8m (2009
€11 9m), Group operating profit for the year was £28 1m (2009
£6 0m) before an exceptional deduction of £1 7m for imparment
costs of the investment N associates

Profit before tax, including 6 Bm currency benefit, amounted to
£27 im compared with £4 7m for the previeus year and profit
after tax was £21 3m (2009 £3 6m) resulting in earmings per
share of 29 3p {2009 4 9p} Adjusied earnings per share, which
excludes the exceptional mparment wnte-down this year and
redundancy costs last year were 31 8p, compared with G 3p
last year

SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

As reported at the half year, the Group has dvided its operating,
research and development and reporting activibes into two man
segments the tracitional Metrology business, the cornerstone of
Renishaw, and, more recently, the as yet smaller Healthcare
activities nto which parts of Renishaw have migrated or which
have been established or acguired

Metrology

Metrology revenue grew to £162 1m from £152 9m in 2009,
with operating profits, prior to exceptional items, of £31 &5m
compared with £10 3m in 2008 Particular growth was
experenced N the Far East and, in terms of products, there was
strong demand for our encoder and laser scale products

This sector continues to Invest heavily in development of new
producis Research and Development, including associated
engineering costs, was £22 Om (2009 £26 2m)

This year has seen the introduction of a number of new products
including the QC20-W wireless Ballbar for checking the servo-
Ing perfarmance of three-axis machine tools, the RMP40, RLP40
and QOILP40 compact probes with radio and optical signat
transmissions far multi-axis and mill-turn machine tools and
lathes, and the PH20 probe head for co-ordinate measunng
machines was successfully launched at the Controi Show In
Germany in May

GREEN ENERGY GIANT GRINDS WITH
MICRON PRECISION

Wind turbines are a stnking sight, some nught say beautiful, some an
eye-sore, but there 1S no escaping the fact that they are increasingly

in demand to generate renewable power Producing enormous
components such as the bearings presents new engineenng
challenges, which KMT Lidkoping have solved very successfully
Based in the town of Lidkoping n the centre of Sweden, its new
hard-turning VTG4000 [Verucal Turning Gnnding) machine uses a
combination of Rerishaw SiGNUM™ optical inear and angle encoders
to achieve the accuracy required, and robust Remishaw magnetic
encoders on the exposed axes of the cutting heads

Enve Johansson 1s Lidkoping s VTG Chigf Designer “Our largest machine
used to accommadate parts up 10 600 mm diameter, but the VTG4000 can
handle drameters in excess of 4000 mm, the size of the largest wind turbine
beanngs Thes 1s hard lwrmng and grnnding which can be very demanding and
the pesiioning accuracy s very important, with a direct effect on the qualty of
the imshed beanngs A standard sze machine, using ballscrews on the axes,
will manage to mantan a 3 pm form deviation yet despite the considerable
difference i relative size, the VTG4000 has been proven to achieve an
exceptonal form deviation of less than 1 um, with feed resolubon n 0 1 um
steps”




8 Chairman's statement continued

Making a world of difference

The TONIC™ range of encoders and RESOLUTE™ absolute
encoders have also been enthusiastically receved by the markst

On 23rd July 2010 the Group acgured a 29% shareholding in
Measurement Devices Limited (MDL) for the sum of £2 3m An
agreement provides for the further purchase of the balance of the
shares over a pencd of four years MDL 15 a metrology company
based in York, with offices in Aberdeen and USA {Houston) lis
laser scanner products are pnmarly marketed 0 the areas of
manne positioning and mine/guarry scanning MDL's products
will add to Rerushaw's current range of laser-based products and
the Group's investment in MDL will enable MDL to expand further
on a global basis and benefit from Renishaw's technology,
engineerng and manufactuning expertise and worldwide
distribuiion network

Healthcare

The healthcare segment comprises the neurosurgical, dental and
spectroscopy products, which includes PulseTeq {head colls for
the enhancement of MRI images), Renishaw Diagnostics
{motecular diagnostics for the early identification of infectious
diseases) and Renishaw Mayfield (neurosurgrcal robots)

Revenue in this sector jor the year amounted to £18 5m (2009
£18 4m) which resuited in an gperating loss of £3 4m, compared
with a loss of £4 3m in the previous year

Research and Development in this sector amounted to £6 Bm
{2008 £7 5m) and was focused on developing the expanding
range of Healthcare offerings Significant resource and
expenditure has been drrected to addressing very demanding
regulatory compliance regulations associated with the glabal
supply of heaithcare and medical devices

The Group has recently entered into an agreement with a world
leading dental implant company, Biomet 31 LLC, {or the
development and marketing of comprehensive digital denta!
solutions o dental professionals and patients worldwide The
collaboration will see Biomet 3) marketing Renishaw dental
scanners, In-lab mihing machines and dental 31 incise CAD
software to dental laboratories through its global marketing and
sales organisation Crown and bridge dental frameworks 1n
zrcona and cobalt chrome {coball chrome intially available in
Europe only) will be manuiactured and supplied through a
collaboration between both companies

Spectroscopy product revenue, presently the largest part of our
healthcare revenue, continued to show good growth, especially In
the Far East

BALANCE SHEET

Capital expenditure for the year was £2 9m {2008 £11 0m} The
Croup is currently cancluding the fitting out of production faciities
at Pune in India, expected to be completed by December 2010
at a cost of around £3m In addition, the refurbishment {estmated
ic cost £1 8m) of the recently acquired premises in Charfield,

closs to New Mills in Gloucestershire, UK, has commeanced
These will be occupied by our dental and medical actvities early
n 2011

Further investment has been made in a number of new machine
tools at our Stonehouse factory At the Woodchester facility,
investment that will double the capacity of automated surface-
mourkt electronics assembly and automation of stylus assembly
processes are currently being commissioned

Working capital (accounts receivable plus inventories iess
creditors} has grown by a net £12m reflecting the significantly
ncreased level of actmity, particularly in the final quarter

Year end net cash balances amountad to L31 im (2008 £20 5m)

Despite an improving nvestment performance, the defict i1 the
pensicn fund (which has been closed to future accrual since
2007) has increased to £37 3m (£22 5m at 30th June 2009)
reflecting changes in the actuanal assumptions used, N
particular, 2 sigrficant reduction in the discount raie and a
change to the mortahty assumption adopted (reflecting the
ncreasing Iife expectancy) The Company has a recavery plan to
fund the deficit no later than 3Cth September 2016 and 1s
reviewing the recovery plan with the trustees following the 3Cth
September 2009 triennial actuanal valuation




STAFF

I 'am very grateful 1o all our employees worldwide for ther
loyally and commitment, especially after the unprecedented
difficulties and challenges which were successfully overcome
last year

I now look forward 1o a more stable business environmant In
which our employees will continue to play a full and important
part in generaling a prosperous future for the Company

DIRECTORS

In line with the UK Corporate Governance Code, &l the drrectars
are standing for re-election at the annual general meeting, with
the exception of Joe McGeehan Joe has been a director since
January 2001 and having completed nine years service, latterly
as the senior Independent director, will not be seeking re-
election Joe has contnbuted encrmously to the actvities of the
Board durng s period of appontment and his commitment
has been valued greatly On behalf of the Board, | should like to
thank Joe for his efforts and contribution to Renishaw

Bill Whiteley has been appointed the senior independent
director with effect from 26th July 2010

DIVIDEND

Your drectors are recommending a final dwdend of 13 6p per
share, giving a total dividend for the year of 17 6p, compared
with 7 768p in 2009 {covered 1 B times by adjusted earnings
per share for the year) payable on 18th October 2010 to
shareholders on the share register on 17th September 2010

PROSPECTS

It 1 clear from the strong second half performance that the
Company 1s showing real momenturn gong nio the new
financial year, highlighted by our record order book for ihe start
of a new year of £23 3m, compared with £9 7m at the start of
the previous year

Whilst economic uncertainties remain, we have a robust
International business model that continues to spread its
apphcations into new markets Qur particular optimism for
further developments in the expanding range of healthcare
offenngs, -logether with our continued nvestment in new
products in our traditonal markets, underpins our confidence
n futyfe growth

Sir Bavid R McMurtry, CBE, RDI, FREng, CEng, FIMechE
Charrman & Chief Executive
28th July 2010

WORLD LEADING EPILEPSY SURGERY CENTRE
USES THE neuro | mate® SYSTEM FOR THE
IMPLANTATION OF INTRACEREBRAL ELECTRODES

Epilepsy 15 a disorder charactensed by uncontrolled electn¢ discharges
within the brain that affects up to 1% of the population and 1s the
second most commeon cause of mental health dhsability (1) In children
for whom medical management fails adequately to control the disease,
the disabling symptoms of the disease, the severe side effects of the
medication and the social sigma create considerable chatlenges to
leading independent and satisfying lives

The neurosurgeons at the Claudio Munan Epilepsy and Parkinson Surgery
Centre of the Niguarda Hospital n Milan, Waly, use the Renishaw neura | mate
slereotactic system in Stereceleciroencephalography (SEEG) procedures to
defing the epleptogeric zone, Ncreasng accuracy and reducing surgery ume,
with a very low comphication rate The neurc | mate simplfies nawganuon and
enables the choice of vitually any trajectary with a high levet of salety

Dr Francesco Cardinale 1s passionate about disserminating his robotc
stereolacuc technique, “Surgery has long been shown in controtied randomized
clrucal tnals to be supenor over medical therapy in clinical and psychosocial
outcomes (1), not {0 mention the economic and social mpact of a lfeune
coping with severe imparment Isn t i« time that surgery became an early
altenatve, especally for young children who do not respend satisiaciorly to
one or two antiepdeptc drugs?”

{1) Wi S, Brma WT Ginan JP Elerszw MLA randomzed contollod (el of surpgeny B lumporal lobo
endpsy Tho New England Jourmal of Modone 2001 345(5) 311 8




10 Financial review

The Financial review has been prepared for the purpose of
assishing members of the Company 1o assess the strategies
adopted by the Company and the potential for those strategies to
succeed and no-ong, Including members of the Company, may
rely on it tor any other purpose The drectors owe their duties
only to members of the Company as a whole and they undertake
no duty of care to mdividual members, other stakeholders or
potential Investors

Trus review has been prepared on the basis of the knowledge
and information avalable to the directors at that time Given the
nature of some forward-looking information, which has been
given in good faith, members should treat this information with
due cautian

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“'FRS"}

In accordance with ZU taw, thg consonidated financial statements
of the Company are prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted
by the EU The Company has elected to prepare its parent
company financiat statements in accordance with UK GAAP

BUSINESS OUTLINE

Renishaw's businass 1s metrolegy, the science of measurement
The Group manufactures a comprehensive range of high-
precision probing systems, accessories, calbration and
measuring systems and other innovative products which enable
customers worldwide te carry out dimensional measurements to
traceable standards

In addition {0 developing the Group's tradiional core metrelogy
business, the Group has also been nvesting in the development
of additional applications for new market sectors based upon its
core metrology expertise The addiional investment has been
focused on the healihcare sector and products for the dental and
newosurgical markets, together with our spectroscopy product
offerings The Group thus manages its business in two business
segments, Metrology, being the traditional core business,

and Healthcare

The Group's man products within these segments comprnse

Metrology - Co-ordinate measuring maching ("CMM") probes and
accessornes, which are used for accurate post-process inspection
of components on CMMSs, Machine Lool probes and tool

setting systems, used {or automated component identiiication,
workpiece and tool setting and compeongnt inspection, Laser
calbration systems and the QC20-W Ballbar, used to determine
the accuracy of CMMs, machine tcols and other industrial and
scientific equiprnent, Linear and angle encoder systems, for
precise lnear and rotary mot:on control, Versatile automated
systems for part handhng, inspection, and materal processing,
ancg a broad range of sty for all probes

Healthcare - Scanning and digilising systems applied to the
dental secior, offering a complete CAD/CAM system for crown
and bridge frameworks, Spectroscopy products, including

a Raman microscope, used to dentify the composition and
structure of matenals {(including medicinal tablet mapping,
molecular diagnostics and DNA analysis), and Neurosurgical
products for use in neurosurgical procedures and for enhancing
the images obtained from MRI scannars

The Group principally manufactures its products in the UK,
Ireland, india, Germany and France

The Group markels and distributes 1ts products to customers
around the world, with sales outside the UK representing over
94% of total group sales

The Group has established overseas marketing and distribution
subsidianes 1n the USA, Japan, Germany, France, Italy, Spain,
Switzerland, Hong Kong, Brazil, The Neatherlands, India, Australa,
Czech Republic, Poland, Russia, Sweden, Austria, South Korea,

Canada, Israel, The People's Republic of China, Singapore and
Tawan These subsidiaries provide support to customers In
Qur major markets

There are alse reprasentative offices in Hungary, Turkey,
Malaysia and Thaland, and an assoctate company,
50%-owned, n Slovena

BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Group's business plan 1s to develop technologes that
provide patented products and methods which suppont our
product strategies These solutions include high-speed, high-
accuwracy, error-corrected dimensional measurement systems,
motion controllers with enhanced high-speed performance,
ultra high-resolution encoders and the development of novel
approaches to materials analysis

Based upon our core technologies, the Group 1s develaping
market opportunities N a range of other industnes in addiion to
its tradiional metal-cutting customer base

In our metrology business, these refate to printing, scientific
research, process control In chemical, semiconducter and
matena! production, and mgtion feedback systems for
equipment used In the production of elecironic and
semiconducior components

In the healthcare sector, the Group 1s developing systems for
preciston functional neurcsurgery, dental procedures

and molecular diagnostics for the early identification of
infecttous diseases

The Group continues to develop further geographic markets, with
ongoing Investment mainly N South East Asta, especially China
and Indra

To improve the Group's ability to design, manufacture and
suppoert its products, continuing iInvestment has been made in
manufacturing faciiies in the UK, kreland and in India

It 1s the Board's belief that success comes from patented and
innovative products end processes, low-cost, high-guality
manufacturng and the ability to provide local custormer support in
alt the Group's markets



RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Warldwide economuc situation

In response to the glabal economic downturn, the Group intiated
a significant cost reduction programme at the start of the

2009 calendar year, with a targeted £10m reduction in annual
overhead expenditure, a redundancy programme involving 437
personnel and the remaining staff accepting a voluntary 20%
reducuon in pay from February 2009

Order intake has shown a signdicant improvernent since the end
of the Group s last financial year, with orders received exceeding
sales for the current financial year As profits returned during the
first hali of the current ftnancial year, full pay was reinstated in
stages, effectively for the full year

The Board continues to maintan a tight conirol on costs and
additional headcount 1s approved where vital to suppoert the
increasing order book

Whilst the signs of an improving global economy are
ancouraging the upturn may be slower than anticipated,
highlighting that Group growth targets may be at nsk

Order book

Orders from customers generally involve short lead tmes with the
outstanding order book at any time being around one menth's
warth of sales value

Thus imited forward order wisibility restricts the Group's ability to
forecast demand accurately and therefore requires maximum
production flexibiity and appropriate inventory levels

Research and development

The Group invests heavily n research and development in

order to develop new products and precesses 10 mantain the
long-term growth of the Group This research and development
encompasses new INnovative products within our cere metrology
nusiness, as well as the apphicaton of our technology 0 the area
of healthcare, ncluding dental and specific applications in the
medical field

The development of new products and processes involves risk,
such as with development time, which may take longer than
orginally forecast and hence involve more cost Also, being at the
leading edge of new technology, there are uncertainties whether
new developments will perform as planned and in some cases,
projects may need 1o be haled

Research and development also involves beta testing at our
maor cusicmers to ensure that new producis wili meet ihe
needs of the market at the nght price

Expenditure 1s only capitaised once the commercial and
technical feasibility of a product 1s proven

These nsks are minimised by operating strictly managed research
and devetopment programmes with regular reviews against
milestones achieved and against forecast business plans

Defined benefit pension schemes

wWith the ctosure of the UK and insh defined beneiit schemes to
new employees and {future accruals for existing members, the
major nsk surrounding accounting for pension costs and future
funding arise from invesiment performance within the portfolio
and actuanal assumptions

This year has seen the Consclidated staternent of comprehensive
ncome and expense bear an actuanal ioss of £14 9m (20089 loss
of £13 Om)

The UK defined benefit scheme 1s secured by a registered charge
on certain of the Group's UK properties The Pension Regulator
has confirmed that i does not propose to 1Issue any scheme
funding directions under Part 3 of the Pensions Act 2004

11

Treasury

Wwith the concentration of manufagtuning in the UK, Ireland and

Indiz, there 1s an exposure to fluctuating currencies on export '
sales, fargely in respect of the US Dollar, Euro and Japanese Yen

The Group managed the risk in respect of the year Just ended by

using forward contracts 1o hedge iorecast Income streams for 1ts

Euro and Japanese Yen exposures and for a proportion of ts US

Dollar ncome streams

The hedging contracts outstanding at the end of the year

were marked to market at the year end and the Consolidated
statement of comprehensve Income and expense shows a profit
for the year of £5 6m (after 1ax) on these outstanding contracts,
with the cash flow hedging reserve changing from a loss of

£5 4m at the end of Jung 2008 to a profit of L0 2m at the end of
June 2010

The Group continues 1o be hedged aganst current levels of Eurg
and Japanese Yen recevables on a roling three-and-a-half year
basis, and against a proporticn of forecast US Dollar recevables
on a roling fourteen-month basis The Group moniters the
effectiveness of its hedging pelicies regularly and any ineffective
proportions may need to be accounted for in the Consoldated
income statement The policy refating to the Group's hedging
practices 1s noted within the treasury policies on page 14

Tax

Significant jJudgement 1s required In determining the effective tax
rate and in evaluating certain tax positions Tax provisions are
adjusted as a result of changing facts and crrcumstances, such
as case law, progress of tax audits or when an event ocours
requiring a change In tax provisions Management regularly
assesses the appropriateness of tax provisions



12 Financial review continued

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group s long-term aim 1s to achieve sustainable growth in
revenue and profits in order 1o provide an increasing dividend
to sharehalders This I1s io be achieved through the substantial
invasiment in research and development of new products and
processes, the application of technologies into different market
areas and the development of 15 global marketing facilities

Tha main financial performance measures monitored by the
Board are

2008 2009 2010
Revenue growth
At actual exchange rates +11% -15% +6%

At constant exchange rates +9% -23% +1%

We are focused on growth in revenue, through increasing our
market penetraton and continually introducing new products This
year reflects an upturn in the global economic position, following
the severe downturn expenenced in the second half of the
previous financial year

2008 2000 2010

Total engineenng costs
including research and development

Gross expenditure £354m £359m £309m
Included in Income statement £326m £3837m £286m

The growih of the business 1s fundamentally dependent on the
continuing investment N engineering costs for the development
of new products and processes, and the continuing development
costs of exisiing products and processes The Group continues
to make signiicant nvestiment in future products and accelerating
our new product development, notwithstanding the fragiity of

the recovery from the recession, In order 1o maintan our leading
market position

2008 2009 2010

Adjusted earnings per
share {pence) 45 9p 93p 316p

In order to provide an increasing return to shareholders, along with
retaining adequate funds for renvestment N the business, we am
10 achieve year-on-year growth in earnings per share

2008 2009 2010
Dividend per share {pence) 25 4p 7 8p 17 6p

We am to achigve significant long-term returns to sharenolders
by mantaining a progressive dividend policy The improved
results this year have allowed the Group to recommence
dwidend payments, following the omission of a final dividend
last year due 1o the impact on the results of the severe global
recession



OPERATING REVIEW

In the year to 30th June 2010 group revenue increased by

£10 4m, or 6% over the previous year, rom £171 2m to

£181 6m Average exchange rates for the financial year have
been {avourable {or the Group relative to the previous year,
alihough the full benefit was not realised as a significant portion
of revenue had been hedged by way of forward contracts at less
favouraole rates than the prevailing rates ai the date of maturiy
(see note on ireasury polhicies below)

Revenue in our metrology segment increased by 6%, from
£152 9m in 2009 to £162 1m and, In our healthcare segment,
ncreased also by 6%, from £18 4m to £19 5m

Gecgraphically, the following table shows the analysis of revenue
by geographical market and the effect of exchange rate changes
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Geographical analysis 2010 sales 2010 sales 2009 sales
at actual Change at 2009 Change at actual

exchangerates from 2008  exchangerates from 2009  exchange rates

£'000 % £:000 % £'000

Far East, including Japan and Australia 71,051 +37% 65,904 +27% 52,006
Continental Europe 52,147 -18% 51,297 -19% 63,222
North and South America 41,455 +3% 38,359 -2% 40,071
UK 10,650 -5% 10,650 -5% 11,259
Other regions 6,304 +34% 6,268 +34% 4,689
Total group revenue 181,607 +6% 173,478 +1% 171,247

The revenue for the year of £181 8m comprised a first half year
revenue of £73 9m (2009 £102 7m), a decrease of 28%, and a
second half year revenue of £107 7m (2009 68 5m), an increase
of 57% The second hailf year revenue of £107 7m alse showed
an ncrease of 46% over the first half year

Staff numbers started at 1,843 at 1st July 2008, following a
reduction of 437 staff in the second half of the previous financial
year as a result of a redundancy programme to mitigate the effects
of the global recession during that pericd  However, as a rasponse
o ncreasing order intake this financial year, additional personnel
have been recrurted, especially duning the second half, pnmariy to
support the production process and to meet arder delivery targets
and as a result, headcount increased by 256, to 2,099 at 30th
June 2010 Labour costs decreased by £1 5m, from £80 Om last
year to £78 5m, a decrease of 2% Redundancy and other one-off
termination payments Iin the previous year amounted 10 £4 1m and
were disclosed separately v the Consolidated income staterment

In Juty 2010, a special bonus s to be pad to employees to
compensate them for the reduction in pay in the penod July 2008
to late September 2008 The accounts tharefore effectively contain
a full year's pay for all employees

In addstion, the Group bonus programme, omitted last year, has
been reinstated for the current financial year

Research and development

The Group has a continung commitment (o a high level of
research and development The expenditure invoived 15 directed
towards the research and development of new producis and
processes relating to metrology and, within our healthcare
business, Raman spectroscopy Systems with an increasing
emphasis on products for neurosurgical and dental procedures

Gross expenditure In engineenng costs, comprising research
and devetopment costs refated to new products and processes,
along with conunuing development costs on existing products
and processes was £30 9m (2009 £35 9m) The capitalisation
of development costs {net of amortisation charges) amounted
to £2 3m (2008 £2 2my), gving a net charge in the Consolidated
income statement of £28 6m (2009 £33 7m)

Between the reportable segments, net of the capritalisation costs,
£22 Om was spent In the metrology segment and £6 6m spent n
our healthcare segrment

included in engineerng costs was £22 Bm related ta new product
research and development, which compares with £23 6m spent
last year

Profits

The reported operating profit for the year was £26 4m, compared
with £1 9m in the previous year This comprised a second half
operating profit of £19 5m (2009 toss of £10 Om) having reported
a first half year operating profit of £6 9m {2009 11 9m)

The operating profit for the current financeal year 1s after
accounting for an exceptional imparment wnte-down of £1 7m in
relation to the investrnent i an associate, which is listed on AIM
at the London Stock Exchange The write-down, included within
the metrology reportable segment, accounted for the difference
between the book value of the INnvestment at 30th June 2010
and the published share price of the associate at that time I the
previous year there were exceptional redundancy costs of £4 im

Excluding exceptional items, the operating profit increased from
£6 0m 1n 2009 to £28 1min 2010

QOur metrology segment reported an operating profit of £31 5m
(2008 £10 3m) with our healthcare segment showing a loss of
£3 4m (2009 £4 3m)

The profit before tax, excluding exceptional items, increasad from
£8 8m in 2009 to £28 'm in 2010

The half yearly split of the adjusted profit before tax of £28 7Tm
was £7 1m for the first half year and £21 6m for the second half
year This compares with a 2009 first half year profit of £14 Om
and a second half loss of £5 2m

Reported (unadjusied) profit before tax was £27 1m, compared
with £4 7m in the previous year

The overall effective rate of tax, a combination of the varying tax
rates applicable throughout the countries In which the Group has
operations, was 21% The comparable rate for the previous year
was 24%

Earmings per share, ncreased from 4 9p to 29 3p Adjusted
earnings per share, excluding the exceptional tems, increased
from 9 3p to 31 6p
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

The Group spent £2 9m on property, plant and equipment
during the year, manly relating to the continuing development
of our manufacturing faciities in the UK, reland and India

The net book value of the Group's 1otal tangble fixed assets
decreased by £3 1m durng the year, from £73 6m to £70 5m,
as the continuing cost control measures restrained new capital
purchases

Intangible fixed assets, comprising capritalised development
cosis goodwill and Intangible assets relating to acquisitions,
and software licences, grew by 0 9m during the year from

£27 7m to £28 6m The principal increase was the caprahsation
of development costs, which, net of amortisation charges,
amounted to £2 3m

Group nventories have increased during the year from £28 2m to
£30 9m as a response to Improving order intake

Cash batances at 30th June 2010 of £31 1m mncreased by
£10 6m from the £20 5m held at 30th June 2008 Cash flows
from cperating actvities were £24 5m, compared with £31 5m
last year

Major components of the cash flows from operating activities
were changes in working capital as the business declined rapidly
up to the end of the prewcus financial year, but has smularly
increased sharply dunng the course of this year, leading to
growth in terms of nventory, debtors and payables Especially
significant 1 the change n the leve! of trade debiors during the
two financial years, although debtor days at 30th June 2010 of
60 days were an improvement on the 69 days at 30th June 2009

As noted above, cash balances at the end of the year have
benefitted from the restrained level of capital expenditure dunng
the year and the omission of a final dividend for the previous
financial year

At the end of the year, the Group's defined benefit pension
funds, now closed for future accrual, showead a defict of £37 3m,
compared with a deficit of £22 5m at 30th June 2009 Defined
beneiit pension fund assets at 30th June 2010 increased to

£83 2m from £70 2m at 30th June 2009 as equities values
improved Labtities grew to £120 5m from £92 7m as a resuft

of changes 1n assumptions, such as the discount rate falling by
0 8% and the use of different mortality assumptions

For the UK defined benefit scheme, a guide ta the sensitivity of
the value of the liabilities 1s

Approximate
Valuation gffect
sensitivity Variation on liabilites
Discount rate 01% £30m
Inflation Q1% £2 9m

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group's treasury policies are designed to manage financial
nsks to the Group that anse from operating In a number of foreign
currencies and to maximise interest ncome on cash deposits

As an international group, the mam exposure 1S 1N respect of
forexgn currency nisk on the trading transactions undertaken by
overseas subsidiznies and on the translation of the net assets of
these subsiciaries

The information below includes disclosures which are required by
IFRS and are an intagral part of the financial statements

Weekly groupwide cash management reporting and forecasting
15 1N place to facilitate management of this currency nsk The
operations of group treasury, which 1s situated at head office, are
governed by Board-approved policies

All Sterling and forengn currency balances not immediately
required for group operations are placed on short-term deposit
with leading international highly-rated financial institutions

The Group uses a number of financial instruments 1o manage
foraign currency nsk, such as foreign currency borrowings

to hedge the exposurs on the net assets of the overseas
subsidignies and, from time to ume, forward exchange contracts
to hedge foreign currency cash inflows

Also, currency contracts are used to minmise the interest cost
of mantaning the currency borrowings The foreign currency
borrowings are short-term with floating interest rates The Group
does not speculate with dervative financial instruments

See note 22 for an analysis of cash balances and currency
borrowings at the year end

Duning the year, there were forward contracts in place 1o hedge
against the Group's Eure and Japanese Yen cash inflows and
a portion of the Group's US Daltar cash inflows for the year As
a result of the subsequent weakening of Sterling aganst these
currencies, there was a loss for the year of £9 1m on matunty
of these coniracts, relative to the exchange rates pernianing ai
the maturty dates and compared with a loss of £11 Om in the
previous year

Forward contracts are in place as a hedge against a substantial
part of the Group's estimated Euro and Japanese Yen cash
inflows on a rolling three-and-a-half-year basis and a lesser
proportion of the Group's estimated US Dollar cash inflows on a
roling fourteen-month basis

INVESTMENT FOR THE FUTURE

The Group has continued io invest heavity 1n innovatwe products
and processes, with 17% cf revenue being spent on engineerng
costs The Group 1s committed 1o continuing this policy in order
to develop new producis (o support its existing markets and to
expand into new market areas, particularly the healthcare sector

We will also continue to invest in manuiacturing, IMprove
efficiencies In production and ensure capacity for the future,
and extend our presence around the world

A C G Roberts FCA
Group Finance Director
28th July 2010




Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

Although the Rerishaw Board has long recognised the need to
manage effectively the sccial and environmenital factors affecting
the business and, In turn, ther IMpact on 1ts reputation and
profitability, 113 acknowledged that a formal CSR management
structure would provide a better focus for the Group's activities In
this respect

Therefore the Board has named Ben Taylor, Assistant Chief
Execulive, as the executive director with responsibility 1o manage
all aspects of the Company s CSR activities One of hug first
measuras was to appoint a group of senior managers io co-
ordinate CSR actvities

This group’s first action was to propose that a Renishaw Group
Business Code be implemented to codify and consolidate
standards of conduct within the Group The Cede has been
appraved by the Board and work 1s underway 10 implement
processes 1o ensure compliance

CUSTOMERS

We continue to buld long-term relationships with our customers
by offering expert local support through our drect presence

in 31 countries and by supplying Innovative products that
significantly advance thewr operational performance - from
improving manufacturing efficiencies and raising product gualty,
to maximising research capabiliies and improving the efficacy of
medical procedures

With an increasing focus within the manufacturing sector on is
environmantal impacts and the business need to reduce costs,
our products are also helping customers 1o reduce energy
consumptian and minNimise waste

Oneg exampte 15 Lamborghini tractors, which has saved €150,000
per annum by instaling Renishaw tool breakage detection
systems, non-productive machine tme taken to check tocls

has been reduced significantly, reducing the total energy
consumption required by this ltalian company te produce the
same level of machined components Further examplas can be
found in the news section of our website, www renishaw com

Our products are also making a significant contributicn to the
manufaciure and operation of alternative energy products, most
notably our positicn encoders which are increasingly used to
ensure the accuracy of machinery used in the manufacture of
solar panels and also 1o give direct pesition feedback on electric
motors for hybrid vehicles

In Sweden KMT Lidkoping (see page 7) rely on our optical and
magnetic encoders to control cnitical positional aspects of their
huge veriical turning grinding machines, used by ther customers
around the worid to produce bearnngs for wind turbines, some
of which are over 4 metres in diameter The accuracy of such
bearngs 1s critical to the safe and efficient operation of these
green energy Sources

STAFF

Renishaw 1s an equal opportunities employer operating a strict
policy of non-discniminatory behaviour, offering an environment
that promotes innovation and progress wihin which indmdual
talents can {lounsh We have a diverse mix of age ranges, gender
and ethnicity - at the end of June 2010 scme 19 2% of UK staff
are aged over 50 (2009 18 6%}, with 12 9% below 25

(2005 9 2%) and some 22 5% of employees are female

{2009 29 3%) Worldwide stafl turnover (excluding redundancies)
has remained stable compared to last year at around 7%,

which compares favourably with the 2009 average in the UK
manufacturing sector of 15 2% (socurce CIPD)

Long service 1s rewarded at every five years of service and can
nclude smalk gifts extra holiday allowance and a cash sum,
with almost 350 staif benefiting this calendar year A group
perlormance bonus programme rewards staff with an annual
bonus based upon group results and individual performance

Variable working-time has been adopted as standard practice
for all UK stiaff, allowing staff members to creale a better work-
Iife batance, whilst at the same time mantaining full suppart

to Rerishaw's worldwide customer base Other benefits that
staff receve include the use of gymnasiums at the New Mills,
Stonehouse, Ireland and Wocdchester Sites and subsichsed
restaurants at the most populous UK locations There are also
discounts for sports and soctal actmities, administered by a
voluntger employee-run organisation

Close to therr respective birthdays, stafi members in the
Gloucestershie locations are invited te attend a communications
meeting at which Board members are present These meetings
provide siaff with information about developments within the
Company and give them the opportunity to ask any question

of the Board in an open discussion forum A copy of the
presentation and responses to guestions raised at these
meetngs are made available 1o all worldwide staff via the Group's
ntrangt  Following the announcement of intenm and annuat
financial results, all staff in Gloucestershire are alsc nwvited to
atiend a senies of presentations, with all issues rarsed agan made
available to all worldwide staff

LAMBORGHINI TOOL BREAKAGE DETECTION
REDUCED BY 67%

Lamborghini 1s a brand that symbaolises ltahan passion in the world of

supercars, but it alsc has a strong following in the agncultural werld,
due to a range of high performance tractors produced by SAME

DEUTZ-FAHR Atits headquarters and main factory in Trevigho, near

Milan, ltaly, wisitors are struck by the same passion for producing
high quality products in an advanced machining operation Now the
company has improved efficiency further by fitling cost-effective
Rermishaw probe equipment to multiple Mazak machining centres,
giving a spectacular return on investment

As Lugr Galirmbert, Manufactunng Engineening specialist for machining

operations, explans, "We have used tool breakage detection for a long time on

the Mazak machines, as machining cycles are fully automated and operators
would have nodea if a tap or drill broke Without detection a component
could stll have a broken tool embedded subsequent operations would be
incomplete and other components could be damaged ”

Mr Galimbert explains that the decision to invest in the TRS2 tool recognition
systerms and the subsequent cycle tme savings has been extremely
successiul "After a detaled analysis, based on the cost to run machines, we
know this equates 10 a saving of more than €150K in the frstyear Thisis
because most of the non productive machine ume taken 1o check toots has
now been refeased 1o machine components We have paid back the imtial
investment in the TRS2s in a matter of pest 5 months ™
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Throughout the year other company updates and tems felt to

be of interest to employees are also regularly commuricated via
emall, wath hard copies crculated to staff without PC access

Tha Renishaw culture also encourages direct employas feedback
either to mmediate supervisors or Board members In aodition, a
suggestion scheme exists with awards for the best

ideas receved

Renishaw maintained its UK sponsored student scheme,
apprenticeship scheme, and industnal placement programme
throughout the difficulties of 2008 A number of sponsared
students who have recently graduated will start during 2010, plus
the Company currenily has 50 students on work placernent, all of
whom are being reviewed for potential sponsorship for 2010/11
There are now 30 apprentices currently in training, and a record
20 new stariers confirmed for September 2010, plus 10 industrtal
placement students

A new ‘Applcations Academy’ has also been created to meet
the need for a larger number of engineers 1o become specialists
in the applcation of Renighaw's metrology products Whilst this
struciured traiming programme will last iwo years for novices,

a modular format will allow other staff to benefit from trairung
sessions, such as six sigma techniques and report writing, which
are relevant to therr job role

THE ENVIRONMENT

Renishaw takes its responsibilities for the environment seriously
and has made further investments to improve its performance

In relation to energy consumption, water usage, ermissions and
disposal of waste materials The Company continues to optimise
and conirol its energy consumption as previously reported with
an additional emphasis upon cost contral during the last 12-
month penod

Energy

In the UK, installation of half-hourly metenng for electricity
consumption $ nearng completion This will allow improved
moniioring and the ability to clearly identity opportunities for
reduced consurmpton Further investments have been made In
Renishaw s detalled moniterning equipment to identdy specific
peaks in electncity usage, quantify reductions and make
continuous Improvements across various sites New investments
have also been made in systems that will monitor gas and water
usage at the four main UK sites allowing these energy streams 1o
be smilarly reduced

Despite the dificult economic conditions that prevailed for

much of the year and a close control of capital investment, the
Company has continued to invest in upgrades to ighting systems
m high energy-load areas of the New Mills and Woodchester
sites These include further ntroductions of passive infra-red
detectors to switch off hghting whan areas arg not occupled

and technology upgrades to lower wailage ighting systems
Evaluations of similar ighting schemes that will reduce electncity
consumption and reduce costs are underway at other sites

As Renishaw consumed more than 6 megawatts of electnicity in
2008 1t 1s bound by UK legislation ta comply with the CRC Energy
Efficiency Scheme (formerly known as the Carbon Reduchon
Commitment} and has registered accordingly To contnue
progress made in recent years by monitonng usage and continue
to reduce CO, emissions, the Board has made a commitment to
achigving the Carbon Trust Standard which will also benefit the
Company in terms of is ranking within the CRC Energy Efficiency
Scheme and any rebates due under the terms of the scheme

Emissions

The measurement of the overall impact of carbon emissions
within the Group 1s very complex given the geography and
scope of operations A conservative estimate of the impact of
changes made by reductions in electricity consumption rates and
arr-freight In the financial year 2009 was a 20% reduction over
the prewious year, with a best estimate of 15,000 tonnes of CO»
being emitted through our activiies

For the 2010 financial year a far greater emphasis has baen
placed upon accurately measunng performance using the UK
Government's guidance on how 1o measure and report upon
carbon emissions

Unless otherwise stated the folkowing analysis (which will form

the baseline data for all fulure emissions reporting) ncludes all the
Group's glebal cperations for the 12-month penod 1st June 2009
to 31st May 2010

GHG emissions
2010 in tonnes of CO.e

Scope 1

(Gas consumption 6850
Owned transpori 18424
Generator diesel 656
Heating ol 382
Total scope 1 2,6312
Scope 2

Purchased electricity 10,525 4
Total scope 2 10,525 4
Significant scope 3

Business travel 1,264 7
Product distribution 1,919 8
Metal purchase 3,6339"
Post/‘Communications 276 3"
Total significant scope 3 6,994 7

* Only UK data included

Based upon this baseline data and as part of the process of
achieving the Carbon Trust Standard, the Company will be
settng targets for reduction of carbon ermissicns during the 2011
financial year

Although not included within these standard Government
measures, Ren:shaw recognises that there 1s a significant impact
caused by staff drving to its Gloucestershire sites There 1s very
Imited pubtic transportation serving these sites, and therefore the
Company actively encourages car sharing by hosting a specific
area on the company intranet, through hft-share notices in
communal areas and through the circulation of regular emails
that remind staff of the benefits of car sharing

Waste Management

Renishaw has continued to analyse waste streams and as a
resull strives to increase recycling and reduce amounts sent to
landfill, notably paper, cardboard, plastic cups, toner cartridges
and batteries Analysis of the waste streams at the man UK sies
shows a markad reduction in landfil has been made in recent
years

Reduction of waste at source Is also seen as a key contnbuior

to overall waste reduction Continuing efforts are beng made to
distrbute both techrical and sales documentation in glectronic
format and the encoder business ing no longer disiributes user
guides to its customers, with up-to-date guides availlable through
a special support website Commercial documentation, such

as invoices and acknowledgements, is also avallable through a
‘paperless’ facility, with customers encouraged 10 accept this
form of transaction




Although only one of the Company's products currently falls
within the scope of the requirements of the Furopean Directive
2002/95/EC on the Restriction of the use of Hazardous
Subsiances {RoHS), all new postion encoder products are now
Introduced as RoHS compliant, and the Company continues to
develop and implement processes for other products wherever
possiblg

THE COMMUNITY

Throughout iis histery the Company has forged ciose links
with the local community and schools It 1s especially keen to
communicale a positive story about the rote of engineering In
enhancing the lives of the general populace and the attractions
of a career within the manufacturing sectar

Rernishaw therefore hosts tour groups of all ages throughout the
year, which in the past 12 months has included business and
engineenng undergraduates from various UK unwversities, focal
secondary schools, and a group from the University of ihe Thurd
Age (U3A)

The Company also actively supports the local business
community imparting its knowledge through roundtable
discussions and business seminars, especially with regard to
export activiies 1t 1s also an active member of Wotton Chamber of
Trade and recently helped judge the Stroud Life Business Awards

Chanty

The Renishaw Chanties Committee (RCC) was created over 20
years ago to distnbuie funds made avatlable by the Company

to support charitable institutions and to support the indwvidual
charitable efforts of staff through a match-funding scheme

A particular focus 1s to assist organssations that help ennch the
Ivas of children and adults, from toddler groups and sports
clubs, through to organisations that support the disabled and the
bereaved This year additional funds were also made available for
a new disaster fund, which was created in the wake of the

Haiti earthquake

During the year the RCC donated funds to and supporied a
chnistmas carol congert fundraising event for a multi-sensory
hydrotherapy unit at St Rose's special needs school in Stroud,
Gloucestershire This inspirational school has an outstanding
reputation for providing for the education, care and therapy

of children with severe physical disabilities and complex
health needs

Gloucestershire Young Carers aims to create a network of
support groups for young carers, the often forgotten section

of our commurities that are burdened at an early age with

the responsibility of caring for thewr Ill or disabled parents The
organisation works with these young carers o ensure that service
prowviders understand therr needs and through the existing 15
support groups allows them 10 take a break and share personal
experiences The RCC had no hesitation in providing funding to
help develop the neiwork

In May six staff from the corporate marketing team also took

part in the 'Helping Hands' volunteer scheme run by Well Child,

a charty which helps seriously sick children and their families to
manage the consequences of senous liness and complex health
condtrons, and also supports children with special educational
needs The team re-designed the axisting hbrary at Amberley
Ridge School in Gloucestershire and in just one day transformed
it 1nto an inspinng recom with new celours and graphics, all funded
by Renishaw

Renishaw has supported Children in Need (CIN} for many

years, and any money raised by staff 1s matched by the RCC
Last Autumn a group of divisional directors decided to support
fundraising efferts through an iniative titled ‘Directors in Drag’,
which caused great amusement around the Gloucestershire sies
and recewed significant media coverage Together with support
irom the RCC this fun day raised £7,450 for CIN
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Education

Nurturing the next generation of engineering excellence and a
desire to prasent a positive image of engineering 15 a fundamentat
part of the Company's involvement with education

In June Renishaw made a significant contribution to a new
Education & Traning Zone that was set up within MACH 2010,
the UK's largest manufacturing show, with the organisers aming
to 'msprre, prepare and motivate the next generation of British
engineers through a rewarding expernence * Over the course of
the live-day evant Renishaw supplied 23 young apprentices 1o
act as tour guides and mentors to groups of 14 to 16 year-old
children, with exhibits including the BLOODHOUND Supersonic
Car which ams to create a new 1,000 mph land speed record
The Company also funded a coach to take over 30 pupils from
three Gloucestershire schools to the exhibition

Engineerning diploma students that attended the show were also
given support materials which included a case study of Renishaw
that arose from a week long visit to the Company in 2008, where
the organisation DTEP was given full access to film staff dunng
ther normal working day at sites across Gloucestershire and to
capture ther thoughts about a career in engineering

Rerishaw has strong links with universities in many of its key
markets An example is a long-term partnership with Cardiff
University s refurbished Trewvithick Library, which includes

the Renishaw Room , a group study facility that provides an
inspirational learning environment for the next generation of high-
class graduate engineers, physicists, computer scientisis and
manufacturing engineers

CMM RETROFIT FOR GE OIL AND
GAS FLORENCE

GE Od and Gas Florence has transformed the performance of a DEA
Giobal CMM with a retrofil system dwect from Rermishaw allowing far
higher data collecuon rates and thus form analysis never belore practucally
poessible on the DEA CMM

As Claudho Bartal {Manufactunng Technology Project Leader) explains,
"The demonstration was spectacular — inspection tme cn a typical
mpeller reduced by 4 tmes However, that 1s not the man reason we
started the project and employed Renishaw ta retroft the CMM with
REVQ The exciting part will start soon when we use the massive amount
of accurate REVO measured dala 1o compare the form of inspected
surfaces with the 30 CAD models ~
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Throughout the year the Company also continued to foster
relationships with prmary and secondary schools, providing
support for work experience, school visits and careers evenings
During the year the Company has supported some 50 pad
placements for university students and thus summer gave one
week work expenence ptacements to 40 students under the
age of 18

Renushaw also supported numerous other organisations that

aim to inspire young engineers, Inciuding hosting the regional
launch of the Go4Set programme, speaking and exhubiting at an
Engineenng Education Scheme Wales event and sponsoring ihe
regional heat of the Greenpower glectrnic car racing championship
which ook place at the Castle Combe race track n Wiltshire, UK

FTSE Group cordirms that Renishaw plc has been independently
assessed according to the FTSE4Good criteria, and has satisfied
the requirements o become a constituent of the FTSE4Goced
Index Series

Created by the global index company FTSE Group, FTSE4Good
1s an equity index series that 1s designed 10 facilitate investment in
companies that meet globally recognised corporate responsibility
standards Companies in the FTSE4Good Index Series hava

met stringent social, ethical and environmental critena, and

are positioned to capitalise on the benefits of responsible
business practice



Directors’ report

The directors have pleasure in presenung ther 37th Annual
report, together with the audited financial statemants for the year
ended 30th June 2010 as set out on pages 26 (0 54

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS
The principal actmties of the Group dunng the year were the
design, manufacture and sale of advanced precision metralogy
and inspection equipment, and products for the healthcare
sector, inctuding Raman spectroscopy and dental systems and
neurosurgical products

A review of the business and Iikely future developments 1S given
in the Chawrman’s statement and the Financial review Segmental
information 1s given 1IN note 2 1o the financial statements

The Companies Act 2006 requires the Direciors’ report to
include a business review Certan information that fulfils these
requrements and those of the UK Listing Authorty's Disclosure
Rules and Transparency Rules, which reguire the Annual report
to in¢clude a management report, can be found 1n the Financal
review on pages 10 to 14 and the description of corporate social
responsbility activities on pages 15 1o 18, as well as in this
Directors’ report

For the purposes of the Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules
which require a corporate governance statement to be included
in the Directors report, the Company's corporate governance
practices are sel out In the Dwectors' corporate governance
report set out on pages 21 and 22, which forms part of this
Crectors report

For the purposes of the UK Listing Authority’s Listing Rules,
certan nformation required o be provided to the shareholders
15 also contained in the Directors’ remuneration repon set out on
page 23

There are no persons with whom the Company has contractual
or other arrangemants which are essential Lo the business of the
Company

Further nformation 1s also avalable on the Company's website
www reruishaw com

DIVIDENDS

The directors propose a final dividend of £5,899,242 or 13 6p
per shara (2009 nil) which, together with the intenm dividend

of £2,911,542 {or 4 00p per share) (2000 £2,816,671 or 7 76p
per share) makes a total amount of dividends for the year of

£12 810 783 or 17 Bp per share, compared with £2,816,671 or
7 76p per share for the previous year Executwve directors holding
36 491 232 shares wawed ther entitlement to receve the 2009
intenm dwidend

DIRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS

The drectors who served during the year and therr interests in
the share capital of the Company {with the equivalent number of
voting rnghis), at the beginning and the end of the year, were -

Qrdinary shares of 20p each

2010 2009
Sir David McMurtry 26,377,291 26,377,291
D . Deer 12,233,040 12,533,040
B R Taylor 10,147 10,147
A C G Roberis 5,165 5,165
G McFariand 2,000 -
J P McGeehan 900 900
T D Snowden 5,000 5,000
T B Garthwaile 3,000 3.000
W H Whiteley 3,765 1,690

All the above holdings were beneficially held with the exception
of 2,434,411 shares (2009 2,434,411 sharas) which were non-
beneficially held by © J Deer but in respect of which he has
votng nghts

There has been no change in the above holdings N the penod 1st
July 2010 to 28th July 2010

In the spint of best practice, and in accordance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code {formerly the
Combined Code), all directors will retire and, baing ehgible, offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting (*AGM"}
to be held on 14th October 2010, except for Joe McGeehan who
has been a director for over nine years and 1s no longer regarded
as independent under the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code Joe McGeehan will retire irom the Board with
effect from the AGM Biographical details of the directors are
shown on pages 4 and 5

Sir David McMurtry as one party and D J Deer and Mrs M E Deer
as the other party have entered into an agreement relating to the
way each party would vote his or her shares If requested by

the other party to do so This agreement continues until 25th
May 2013

The rules on appaintment, reappointment and retrement by
rotation of the directors and therr powers are set out In the
Company's Articles of Asscciation There are no powers given o
the directors that are regarded as unusua!

DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS' INDEMNITY INSURANCE
Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the Company’s
Avticles of Association provide for the directors and officers of
the Company to be appropriately ndemnified The Comipany
maintains insurance for the drectors and officers of the Company
for ther acts and omissions during the performance of

their duties

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital, ncluding nights and
obligations, is given in note 21 to the financial statements The
Company s not a party 1o any significant agreements that

might terminate upon a change of control of the Company A
sharehotlder's authonty for the purchase of its own shares was in
existence during the 2010 financial year However, the Company
did not purchase any of t$ own shares during that tme

AUDITORS
A resolution to re-appont KPMG Audit Pic as auditors of the
Company wiil be proposed at the forihcoming AGM

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The drrectors who held office at the date of approval of this
Drectors' report confirm that, so far as they are each aware,
there I1s no relevant audit nformation of which the Company's
auditors are unaware, and each director has taken all the steps
that he cught to have taken as a director to make himself
aware of any relevant audit Information and to establsh that the
Company's auditors are aware of that nformation

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The notice canvening the AGM and an explanation of the
resolutions sought are set out on pages 55 to 58 At the meeting,
the Company will be seeking shareholder approval far, amongst
other things

{i} the ability to make market purchases of its own ordinary
shares, up to a total of 10% of the 1ssued share capital, and

(i} the amendment of the Company's Articles of Association,
primanty to reflect the prowisions of the Comparies Act 2006
and the Shareholders’ Rights Regulations An explanation of the
man changes between the proposed and the existing Arlicles
of Association 1s set out on pages 57 10 58 (Appendix 2 of the
notice of AGM)

The drreclors consider that all the resolutions propesed are n the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole
and unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour

of the resclutions, as they intend to do In respect of ther

own holdings
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20 Directors’ report continued

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

Apart from the shareholdings {and correspending voung nghts) of

Sir David McMurtry and John Deer (36 2% and 16 8% respectively),
the followaing voting nghts have been notified to the drectors, which
represent 3% or more of the voting nghts attached to 1ssued shares In
the Company as at 28th July 2010

% of 1ssued Number
share capital of shares
BlackRock Inc 501% 3,648,103
Capital Research and
Management Company 4 76% 3,465,730
Standard Life Investments
Lumited 4 .94% 3,593 580

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group has a continuing commitment 1o a high level of research
and development The expenditure involved 15 directed towards the
research and development of new products relating to metrology,
encompassing computer aided design and manufactunng systems,
and relating to healthcare products, encompassing Raman
spectroscopy systems, dental systems and certan areas in the
medical field

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY
The Company has a vanety of payment terms

* Contracts have been negotiated with a number of supplers
and payments are made in accordance wath the terms
of these contracts

* Payment terms are chsclosed on the Company s standard purchase
order forms  The Company's policy 1s to ensure that all Invoices
are settled within 60 days of the receipt and agreement of a vald
and complete Invoice

Twa payment runs are made each month Wherever possible,
payments are made using the Bankers' Automated Cleanng Service

Typrcaly, the Company settles all due invoices in the calendar month
following thew receipt The number of days' purchasing cutstanding at
the end of June 2010 was appreximately 30 days (2009 30 days)

EMPLOYEES

The mantenance of a highly skilled worklorce 1s essentiat to the

future of the business and the directors place great emphasis on the
continuation of the Company s approved training policy Health and
safety matters are given special attention by the drectors and well
establshed systems of safety management are in place throughout the
Group io safeguard employees, customers and wisitors

Employment policies are designed to provide equal opportunities
irrespectve of race colour, retgion sex age, disability or sexual
orientaticn Proper consideratiion 1s given to applications for
employment from disabled people who are employed whenever
suiable vacancies armve Opportunities are given to employees who
become disabled to continue in ther employment or to be trained for
other positons

Regular contact s mantainad with all employees based in
Gloucestershire tbrough monthly communications meetings and
depanmenta! channels tn addition, in February and August, the

Assistant Chief Executive presents the intenm results and final results
respectively, to all such employees following ther publication

Employees are encouraged to be involved in the Company's
performance through vanous methods, including a staff suggeston
scheme under which awards are gven for innovative suggestions for
Improving the way In which the Company undertakes its business, an
inventors award scheme for indwviduals who are named as wventors
on patent applications that are subsequently granted and an annual
performance bonus programme which 1s dependent upon indmwidual
performance and the performance of the Company

Employee work forums were set up at each of #s UK sites during the
previous financial year and employee work forum reprasentatives were
elected to laise with management on employee matiers Work forums
continue to be active at some of the UK sites  Further inforrmation on
employee matiers 1s contained in the descnption of corporate socal
responsibility activities set out on pages 1510 18

DONATIONS

Durning the year the Group made chantable donations of £47,000

{2009 £91,000} The Group organises Its chantable donations by

two methods firstly, by allocating a fund of money to its Charities
Committes, and secondly, through direct grants as decided by the
Board The Chanties Commuttee meets at least four tmes a year to
consider all applications for donations from local groups in the area Its
donations pohcy 15 1o provide funds to local causes or local branches of
natonal groups, with focus on youth proects Further information 1s set
out on pages 15to 18

No poltical donations were made dunng the year {2009 £ni)

Signed on behalf of the Board

N Tang
Secretary
28th July 2010

Renishaw plc
Registered number 11068260



Directors’ corporate governance report

The Board 1s committed o maintainuing high standards of corporate
governance This report, together with the Directors' remuneration report
on page 23 sets out how the Company has apphed the principles of the
Combined Code on Corporate Governance {the “Code") 1ssued by the
Financial Reporting Council and contains the information required by
Section 7 of the UK Lsting Authonity's Disclosure Rules and Transparency
Rules The UK Corpaorate Governance Code issued in Jung 2010, which
replaces the Code, applies for inancial years commencing on or after 29th
June 2010 and wll therefore apply to the Company from 1st July 2010
The Company will report on comphance on the UK Corporate Governance
Code inits next annual report

A DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board cormpnses five executive and four non-executive directors The
directors holding office at the date of this report and ther biographical
details are given on pages 4 and 5

The Board focuses on formulation of strategy, management of effective
busness controls and review of business performance There is a formal
schedule of matters specifically reserved to it for decision These include
the approval of annuai and intenm results and intenm management
stalements company and business acquisitions and disposals, majar
capital expenditure, borrowings, matenal agreemenits, director and
company secrelary appointments and removals, any patent-related
dispuie and other matenal iigation, forecasts and major product
development projects

The Board meets as often as 1s necessary to discharge its duties
effectively In the financiat year ended 30th June 2010, the Board met

ten times and the directars attendance record at Board and committee
meetings 1 set out at the end of this report In addiion, the non-executive
directors met a number of tmes without executive directors present

The Board has three formally constituted committees, the Audit commiitee,
the Remuneration committee and the Nomination commitige

There 1s an executive committee known as the Execuiive Board thatis
responsible for the executive management of the Group's businesses (t1s
chared by the Charrman and includes the executive directors of Rerishaw
ple and other senmior management representatives

A framework of delegated authonties 1s in place that maps out the structure
ot detegation below Board level and includes the matters reserved to the
Executive Board The Company maintains hability nsurance for its directors
and officers as disclosed in the Directors’ repon

The Company amended its articles of association in October 2008 to
deal with, amengst other things, the provisions on confiicts of interest In
the Companies Act 2006 which came into force in October 2008 The
Beard adopted a conflict of interests policy, putting in place procedures
for the disclosure and review of any conflicts and potential conflicts and
authonsation by the Board if felt appropriate Authonsations granted and
the terms of such are reviewed on an annual basis New disclosures are
made where applicable

Chairman and Chief Executive

The role of Charrman and Chief Executive 1s a combined role and thus
contrary 1o the recommendations of the Code However, the Board
considers that there s still a clear division of responsitylities at Board level 10
ensure an appropnate balance of power and authonty

Board balance and independence

Three of the non-executive drectors are considered by the Board to be
independent in character and judgement and there are no relationships

or crcumstances that are likely 1o affect the judgement of such non-
executive directors Joe McGeehan has served as a director since
January 2001 and therefore has been a member of the Board for over

9 years and would not under the terms of the Code be ¢considered
ingependent He will be retiring at the next Annual General Meeting (AGM}
10 be held on 4th October 2010

The Code recommends that at least half the board, excluding the
Charman, should compnse ndependent non-executive directors The
Board does not comply with this requirement as it considers the batance of
the Board to be appropnate {or the size of ils business

With effect irom 26th July 2010 the senior ndependent director is Bill
Whiteley and he 1s avalable to discuss concerns with shareholders should
the norma! channels of the Charman and Chief Executve or the Group
Finance Director fail to resolve such concerns or for which such contact
1S Inappropriate

21

Appointments to the Board

With effect from 26th July 2010, the Nomination committeg has been

instiuted as the commuitiee responsible for reviewing the structure and
composition of the Board and nominating carkhidates for appointment \
to the Board Prewiously, there was a combined Remuneration and |
nominaticn committee A majonty of the members of this committee are |
independent non-executive directors and a st of membership and the

char of the commutiee 1s set out on page 5 The terms of reference of this
committee are published on the Company's website

No new appontiments have been made to the Board dunng the year

but the commutiee will be considenng how the Board struciure and
composition will be affected by the retrement of Joe McGeehan from the
Board with effect from the next AGM

The terms of appomntment of the non-execuive directors are avalable for
inspection at tha AGM and at the registered office upon written reguest

None of the executve directors holds a directorship in &
FTSE 100 company

Information and professional development

The Board receves appropriate documentation, management accounts, |
forecasts and commentarnes thereon in advance of each Board meeting

to enable its members to review the financial performance of the Group,
current trading and key business initiatives

Directors are offered the opportunity to attend formal training courses

1o update ther knowtedge of ther duties as directors Guidance notes
on changes to law and regulations are provided as appropnate Non-
executive directors are Invited 1o attend internal conferences, which
provide information to the Group on new product development and
marketing Niatives Business presentations are gven at Board meetings
to provide updates on product and business strategy All drectors have
access to the company secratary and to ndependent professional
adwice at the Company's expense where necessary to discharge ther
responsibilities as directors

Performance evaluation

The Board has established a formal process, led by the senior ndependent
director, for the annual evaluation of the performance of the Board and
lhe Charrman This nciudes the completion of a guestionnaire designed
and approved by the Board to provide a framework for the evaluation
process Itis the role of the senior independent director 10 summarise
the responses and discuss them with indmdual drectors and with the
Board as a whole The requirement under the UK Corporate Gavernance
Code that evaluation of the board of FTSE 350 companies should be
externally facihiated at least every three years has been noted and the
implementation of this requirement will be considered by the Board

Re-election

In the spint of best practice, the Board has decided that starting with this
year's AGM all drrectors wall retire from the Board annually and, other
than In the case of any director who has decided 1o stand down from the
Board, wiil offer themselves up for re-election at the AGM

B DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
The Drectors' remuneration report set out on page 23 explans how the
Company apptes the Code prnciples relating to remuneration

C ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT FINANCIAL REPORTING
The respective responsibiities of the directors and auditors in connection
with the financial staterments are explained in the Statement of directors
responsibiiies and the Independent auditors' report

Going concern

The Group's business actmvities, together wath the factors tikely 1o affect is
future development, performance and position are set out in the Financial
review on pages 10 to 14, where also given are detalls of the financial and
houidity positons In addition, note 22 in the financial statemenits includes
the Group's abjectives and pokcies for managing its capital, detalls of its
financial Instruments and hedging actvties and its exposures to credit nsk
and hquidity nsk.

The Group has considerable financial resources at its disposal and
the direciors have considered the current financial projections As a
consequence, the directors believe that the Group 1s well placed to
manage its business nsks successfully despite the current uncertain
economic outlook



Going concern (continued)

After making enquines, the directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Company and the Group have adequate resources

to continue 1N operational existence for the foreseeable future
Accardingly, they continue o adopt the going concern basis in
prepanng ihe Annual report and accounts

Internal control

The Board 1s responsible ior the Company s system of internal control
and for reviewing 1ts effectiveness Any system of internal control

15 designed to manage rather than elrminate the nsk of {allure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

There are defined hnes of responsibiity and delegauon of authornties
There are also establshed and centrally documenied control
procedures, Including, for example, capital and other expenditure,
information and technotogy secunty, and legal and regulatory
compliance These are applied throughout the Group

The Group internal audit function provides independent and
objective assurance that the procedures are appropriate and
effectively applied The Group Audit Manager attends Audit
commitiee meetings 1o present annual Internal audit plans and the
results of such internal audits Actions are monitored by the Audit
commitiee on an ongaing basis

There 1s a process for the review of business nsks throughout the
Group These are reporied on a menthly basis by senior managemesnt
and overseas subsidianes These reports are reviewed by the Board
at each of ts meetings

The Board ensures that there are effective internal controls over
the financial reporting and consolidation processes Monthly
accounts and forecasis are presented 1o the Board for review The
Group internal audit function undertakes a programme of review
of subsidhanes’ accounting processes and performance to provide
asswance t¢ the Board on the integnty of the information supplied
by each company which forms part of the consolidated rasuits of
the Group

The Board undertakes an annual formal review of the effectiveness
of the Group s system of internal controls and an updated nsk

and contrgfs analysis for the Group The review covers all matenal
controls, including financial, cperational and comphance controls and
nsk management systems

The Board considers that there 1s an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluabing and managing the significant nsks facing the Group that
has been in place dunng the year, 1s regularly revewed and accords
with the Tumnbull guidance The Board confirms that necessary
actien has been or 15 baing taken to remedy any significant failings or
weaknesses identified from its review

Audit committee and auditors

The Audit commiitee comprises the four non-executve directors A
list of the members and the charman 1s set out on page 5 The Board
15 satsfied that at least two members of the committee have recent
and relevant financial experience, being Terry Garthwaite and David
Snowden The terms of reference of this commuttee were reviewed
duning the year and are avalable on the Company’'s website

The committee reviews the accounting polcies and procedures of the
Group, its annual and intenm financial statements before submission
10 the Board and its compliance with statutory requiremenis The
committeg monitors the integrty of the Group's financial statements
and anncuncements refating 1o financial performance and reviews

the significant reporting judgements contained therein It also reviews
the scope, remit and effectiveness of the internal control systems and
internal audit function

The committee has prnmary responsibility for making the
recommendation on the appantment, re-appontment and removal of
external auditors, which the Board puts to shareholders for approval
at the AGM

it keeps under review the scope and results of the audt, its cost
effectveness and the independence and objectivity of the auditors
The auditors provide a confirmaton of ndependence on an annual
basis The commitiee reviews the nature and extent of the non-audit
services supphed by the auditors, recening regular reports on the
balance of audit to non-audit fees

22 Directors’ corporate governance report continued

The committee reviews the policy by which employees of the
Company may, In confidence, raise matters of concern, including
possible impropnetes in financial reporing or other matiers

The committee meets at least three times a year with the Group
Finance Director, the Group Financial Controller, the Group Audit
Manager and the external auditors in attendance At least one
meeting, or part, 1s held with the external auditors without executive
directors present

D RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Dialogue with institutional shareholders

Presentations are given 1o instdutional Investors folowing pubhcation
of the hatf-year and full-year results, {ollowing which intenrn reports
are published and annual reparts are delivered to all shareholders
Institutional nvestors are actively encouraged to wisit the Company's
headquarters and manufacturing sites where they will meet at least
one of the executive directors and have the opportunity of discussing
any 1ssues with them Mesiings with investors, analysts and media
are reporied at each Board meeting and analysts’ and brokers'
reports ciroulated so that the Board develops an understanding of the
views of investors and others

If requested non-executive directors are avalable to attend meetings
with major shareholders All directors attend the AGM at which they
have the opportunity to meet with shareholders

Constructive use of the AGM

The AGM takes place at the Company's headguarters and formal
notfication 1s sent to the shareholders at least 20 working days before
the meeting A business presentation Is given at the meeting and att
directors are avalable for questons dunng and after the meeting
Tours of the Company's facilities are offered

The Company reports on the number of proxy votes lodged on
each resolution, the balance for and against each resclution and the
number of abstentions after the resolution has been dealt with on

a show of hands This information 1s provided to the sharehoiders
attending the AGM and published on the Company s website
following the meeting

FSA DISCLOSURERULEDTR 726 R
The information regarding shara capital required to be disclosed by
this rute 1s contained N the Directors’ repont

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

ATTENDANCE RECORD

Shown against each director's name 1s the number of meetings of
the Board and its commitiees at which the director was present and,
in brackets, the number of meetings that the director was ehgble to
attend during the year

Remuneration &

Aucht nomiNation
Director Board cormnmitiee committee
Sir Dawnd McMurtry 10 (10) - -
0 J Deer 9 {10 - -
8 R Taylor 10 {10) - -
A C G Roberts 10 {10} - -
G McFarand 10 {10} - -
J P McGeehan 3910} 23 1(1)
T D Snowden 8 {10} 33 1Y
T B Ganthwaite i0(10) 33 1{1)
W H Whiteley 9 (10) 2{3) o1

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

The Board considers that it has complied with the requirements of the
Code throughout the year except in relation 10 the following matters
{the reasons for non-compliance are stated in the report above)

* the combined role of charman and chief executive, and

* at least half the board, excluding the charrman, does not comprise
independent non-execuive dreciors

N Tang ¢ Ou\f

Secretary

28th Juty 2010




Directors’ remuneration report

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration committee 1s responsible for deciding the
Company's framework of executive remuneration and setting
remuneration packages for each of the executive direclors

The commiitee’s policy Is 0 motvate and retain executive
drectors by rewarding them with competitive salary and
beneiit packages and ncentives These are finked to the overall
performance of the Group and, in turn, {0 the interests of the
sharehotders

The committee reviews annually all aspects of the executive
drectors' remuneration performance and employmert

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

All the members of this commitiee are non-exscutive directors
and a list of membership and the chav of the committes 1s set
cut on page 5 The terms of reference of this committee are
published on the Company’s website

The remuneration of the non-executwe directors 1s determined by
the executve directors

No new appantments of directors were made during the year

REMUNERATION

Salary

The Remuneration committee reviews basic salaries o take
effect from 1st July each year In deciding appropriate levels, the
committee takes account of financial data taken from a cross-
section of UK companies within the electronics and engineenng
sectors

The voluntary salary reduction of 20%, implemented in February
2009, was restored to all staff for ithe year ended 30th June
2010 inciuding directors, with the exception of three exacutive
dwectors who elecied 1o continue the reduction through to

30th June 2010

Bonus

The Company niroduced a new bonus scheme for executive
drrectors n 2008 based on an assumption of improwing group
profit shown by the Group's business plan

The relevant performance targets for the year have not been
achieved and consequently there 1s no annual bonus for the
executive directars for the current financial year

There are no share options or long-term incentive schemes N
operation for the direciors but the position 1s kept under review

The non-execuive direciors do not participate N a
benus scheme

Other benefits

Company cars and cther benefits provided to drreciors are
subject to ncome tax The benefits are ncluded in the directors
remuneration table iy note 7

Geoff McFartand 1s a non-executive director of Delcam plg, In
respect of which na remuneration 1s payable by Delcam pl¢

Pensions
The Company makes annual contributions of 15% of underlying

basic salary to individual pension policies for Ben Taylor and Allen

Roberts Nerther bonus scheme payments nor other benefits are
ebgible for pension scheme contributions

Geoff McFarland participated in the Company's defined benefit
scheme up to its termination on 5th Apnl 2007 and since that
date the Company's defined contribution scheme  More detaills
are gwvenin note 7

The non-executive directors do not participate in the Company's
pension schemes

Summary
Details of directors’ remuneration (including pensions) which form
the audited section of this report are shown innote 7

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND COMPENSATION

The execuiive directors have each entered nto a service contract
with the Company The coniracts do not contain any specific
provisions governing the payment of compensation for loss of
office or employment, whether as a result of a takeover bid or
otherwise The notice penod for termination of the contract 15
twelve months to be given by either the Company or the director

The non-executive directors have been apponted under
contracts for services which are intended to continue for an
inhial period of three years However, these contracts may be
terminated by either the Company or the director on ane
month’s notice

PERFCRMANCE GRAPH

The graph below shows the Company's total shareholder return
(“TSR"} performance, compared with the FTSE mid 250 index,
which the directors believe 15 the most appropriate broad index
for compariscn

The report was approved by the Board of directors on 28th July
2010 and has been signed on its behalf by -

T D Snowden FCA

Charrman, Remuneration committee

23




the financial statements

The directors are responsiblte for preparing the Annual report
and the group and parent company financtal statements In
accordance with applicable law and reguiations

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent
company financial statements for each financial year Under that
law they are required 1o prepare the group financal statements
In accordance with IFRSs as adopied by the EU and applicable
law and have elected to prepare the parent company financial
statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and
applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statemenis unless they are sausfied that they give a true and

farr view of the state of affars of the group and parent company
and of thew profit or loss for that penod In preparing each of the
group and parent company financial statements, the directors are
required to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

= make judgements and estimates ihat are reasonable
and prudent,

= for the group financial statements state whether they have
been prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the
EU

+ for the parent company financial statements, state whether
applcable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in
the parent company financizl statements, and

24 Statement of directors’ responsibilities In respect of the Annual report and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unlass It 1s inappropriate to presume that the greup and the
parent company will contnue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient 10 show and explain the pareni
company's transactiens and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial posiion of the parent company and
gnable themn to ensure that its financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities

Under applicable law and regulations, the dreciors are

also responsible for preparing a directors’ report, directors’
remuneration report and directors’ corporate governance
statement that complies with that law and those regulations

The direciors are responsible for the mamnienance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company's website Legislation in the UK governing the
preparaton and dissemination of financial statements may differ
fram fegisiation in other jurisdiclions

Responsibility statement of the directors In respect of the Annual report and

financial statements

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

{a} the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the

accounting standards referred to in the Statement of directors’

responsibiities give a true and far view of the assets,
labhties, financial position and prafit or ioss of the Company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a
wholg, and

{b} the Financial review includes a fair review of the developmant
and performance of the business and the position of the
Comgany and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a description of the prin¢ipal
nisks and uncertainties that they face

On behalf of the Board

AC G Roberts FCA
Group Finance Diector
28th July 2010



Independent auditors’ report to the members of Renishaw plc

We have audited the financial staiements of Renishaw plc for
the year ended 30th June 2010 set out on pages 26 10 54

The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in the
oreparation of the group financial statements 15 apphcable law
and International Financral Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as
adopled by the EU The financial reporting framework that has
been applied In the preparation of the parent company financial
statements is applicable law and UK Accounting Standards {UK
Generalty Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company s members, as a
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so 1that we might
state to the Company's members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and
the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
repont, or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

As explained more fully in the Direclors’ responsibilities statement
set out on page 24, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied

that they give a trug and {ar view Qur responsibility 1s to audit
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's (APB s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT QF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A descrniption of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1
provided on the APB s web-site at www frc org uk/apb/scope/
UKP

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our opinion

» the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state
of the Group's and of the parent company's affars as at 30th
June 2010 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

+ the group financial statements have been properly prepared N
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

= the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice

= the financial statements have been preparea In accorgance
with ihe requirements of the Companes Act 2006, and, as
regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE
COMPANIES ACT 2006

in our opinion

» the part of the Directors' remuneration report to be audied has
been properly prepared i accordance with the Companies Act
20086, and

« the iInformation given in the Directors' report for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared I1s
consistent with the financial statemenis

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY
EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are regured to report to you
if, 0 our opinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recewved from branches not visited by us, or

« the parent company financial statements and tha part of
the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in
agreemeant with the accounting records and raturns, of

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

» we have not received all the Information and explanations we
require for our audt

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

« the directors’ statement, set out on page 21, in relation to going
cencern, and

« the part of the corporate governance statement as contaned
in the Direclors’ corporate governance repert relating to the
Company’'s compliance with the nine provisions of the June
2008 Combined Code specified for our review

O gl

A C Campbell-Orde
(Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of

KPMG Audit Plc 100 Temple Strest

Statutery Auditor Bristol
Chartered Accountants BS1 BAG
28th Juty 2010
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26 Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 30th June 2010

from continuing operations Notes 2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Revenue 2 181,607 171,247
Cost of sales {93,832) (101,084}
Gross profit 87,775 70,183
Distnibution cosis (39,742) (41,5589
Administrative expenses including exceptional items {21,606) (26,754)
Qperating profit excluding exceptional item 28,095 5 991
Exceptional tems 2010 - Imparment wnte-down, 2008 - redundancy costs i1 {1,668) (4 121)
Operating profit 26,427 1,870
Financial ncome 4 5,926 8,754
financial expenses 4 (5,775) (6.219)
Share of profits of associates 11 479 317
Profit before tax 5 27,057 4,722
Income tax expense 5] (5,745) (1,124)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 21,312 3598
Profit attnibutable to
Equity shareholders of the parent company 21,814 3.871
Non-controing interest 21 {502) {273)
Profit for the year from ¢continuing operations 21,312 3,598
pence pence
Dwidend per share ansing in respect of the year 21 176 776
Dividend per share paid in the year 490 2539
Earnings per share {basic and diluted) 8 2903 49
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income and expense
f
or the year ended 30th June 2010 Noles 2010 2009
£000 £'000
Profit for the year 21,312 3,598
Foreign exchange translation differences 2,201 248
Actuanial loss In the pension schemes 15 (14,867) (13.032}
Eifective poriion of changes i faw value of cash flow
hedges net of recychng 7,760 (1.615)
Comprehenswe ncome and expense of associates (324) -
Delferred tax on income and expense recognised In egquity 1,820 3614
Expense recogmsed directly in equity (3,410) (10,785)
Total comprehensive income and expense for the year 17,902 {7,187)
Attributable to
Equity shareholders of the parent company 18,404 {6.914)
Non-controling interest 21 (502) (273)
Total comprehensive income and expense for the year 17,902 {7,187}




Consolidated balance sheet
at 30th June 2010

Notes 2010 2009

£000 £'000

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 2] 70,532 73 583
Intangible assets 10 28,613 27,683
Invastrments in associates 11 5,152 7085
Deferred tax assets 13 20,056 14,165
Dervalives 14 4,002 4,020
Total non-current assets 128,355 126,536
Current assets
Inventories 16 30,884 29,158
Trade recevables 22 45,873 24,067
Current tax 1,848 1626
Other recevables 4,725 3,626
Dernvatives 14 1,158 709
Cash and cash equivalents 17 22 31,143 20,488
Total current assets 115,631 79,662
Current habilihies
Trade payables 10,440 6 588
Current tax 532 810
Provisions 18 539 656
Derivatives 14 3,346 5623
Other payables 19 15,027 7.716
Total current habiliies 29,884 21,493
Net current assets 85,747 58,169
Non-current habiities
Employee benefiis 15 37,251 22,458
Deferred tax laities 13 15,433 10,618
Dervalives 14 1,575 6,627
Other payables 20 1,222 1,222
Total non-current habilities 55,481 a0 925
Total assets less total habilities 158,621 143 780
Equity
Share capital 21 14,558 14,558
Share premium 42 42
Currency translation reserve 21 4,023 1,822
Cash flow hedging reserve 21 172 (5,415)
Retained earnings 140,459 132,755
Other reserve 21 {201) -
Non-controling interest 21 {432) 18
Total equity 158,621 143 780

These financial statements were apprgved by the Board oi direciors on 28th Juty 2010 and were signed on 1ts behalf by -

A

e

Sr David McMurlry
A C G Robens

Dvectors
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for the year ended 30th June 2010

28 Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Currency Cash fiow Non-
Share Share translation hedging Retaned Other controlling

capital premium reserve  reserve earnings reserve interest Total
Year ended 30th June 2009 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Balance at ist July 2008 14 558 a2 1,574 (4,252} 154,403 - 320 166,645
Profiv{ioss) for the year - 3.871 - (273) 3,588
Other comprehensive income and expense
Actuanal loss in the pension schemes - - (9,870) - - (9.870)
Foreign exchange translaton differences - 248 - - 248
Changes in farr value of cash flow hedges - - (1,163) - - {1.163)
Total other comprehensive ncome - - 248 (1,163) (9,870) - - {10,785)
Total comprehensive income 248 (1,183) (6,999) 273) (7.187)
Acquisiton of non-controlling interast - - - (29) (29)
Didends paid - (15,649) - {15,649)
Transactions with owners recorded directly n equity - - (15.649) (?9y (15678)
Balance at 30th June 2009 14 558 42 1.822 {5,415) 132,755 18 143,780
Year ended 30th June 2010
Profit/{loss) for the year - - 21,814 {502} 21,312
Other comprehensive Income and expense
Actuarial less in the pension schemes - - - (0,874) - (10,874)
Foreign exchange translation differences - - 2,201 - - 2201
Changes n far value of cash flow hedges - . 5,587 - 5,587
Relating to associales - - - {324) - - (324}
Total other comprehensive income - 2,201 5,587 (11,198) - - (3.410)
Total comprehensive income - 2,20 5,587 10,616 - (502 17902
Acquisiion of non-controling interest - - - (201) 52 {149)
Dividends pad - - (2,912) - - (2,812)
Transactions with owners recorded directly In equity - - (2,912) (201) 52 (3061}
Balance at 30th June 2010 14,558 42 4,023 172 140,469 {201) (432) 158,621

More details of share capital and reserves are given nnote 21




Consolidated statement of cash flow

for the year ended 30th June 2010

Notes 2010 2009
£'000 £ 000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 21,912 3,598
Adjustments for
Amortisation of development costs 10 4,692 4,433
Amortisation of other intangibles 10,11 1,871 1,441
Depreciation 9 7,807 8 890
{Proht)fioss on sale of property, plant and equipment {31) 151
Share of profits from associates 11 (479) 317)
Exceptional imparrment wrte-down 1,668 -
Financral mcome 4 {5,926) {8,754}
Financial expenses 4 5,775 6,219
Tax expense 5] 5,745 1124
21,222 13,187
(Increasel/decrease in inventories 16 (1,728) 5,064
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other recevables (21,252) 28,167
Increase/(decrease) n trade and olher payables 10,711 (12,026)
{Decrease) in provisions 18 (117} {168)
(12,386) 21,037
Income taxes pad (5,615) (6,368)
Cash flows from operating activities 24,533 31,454
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 9 {2,868) {11 005)
Development costs capitalised 10 {6,968) (6,618}
Purchase of other intangibles 0 (184) (7,503}
Investment In subsidianies and associaies (149) (400}
Sale of property plant and equipment 190 259
Interest receved 4 255 1,161
Dwidend receved from associate i1 80 80
Cash flows from investing activities (9,644} (24,026)
Financing activities
Interest paid 4 {178} (255)
Dividends paid 2 {2,912) {15,649)
Cash flows from financing activities (3,090} {15,904)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 11,799 (8 476)
Cash and cash eqguivalents at the beginning of the year 20,488 38,183
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held {1,144) (9,219)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17 43 20,488
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30Notes

{forming part of the financial statements)

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation
Renishaw plc {the “Company'} 15 a company incorporated in
the UK

The group financial statements consolidate those of the Company
and its subsidianes {together referred 10 as the *Group™) and equity
account the Group s interest In associates

The group financial statements have been prepared and approved
by the drrectors in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU ("adopted IFRS") and those parts
of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporiing under
IFRS The Company has elected to prepare its parent company
financial staterments in accordance with UK GAAP, these are
presented on pages 48 o 54

The accounting policies set out below have unless otherwise stated,
been appled consistently o all penods presented in these group
financial statements

Judgements made by the directors, in the application of these
accounting policies that have a significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of matenal
adusiment In the next year are noted below

Basis of accounting

The hnancial statements have been prepared under the histonical
cost convention subyject 1o items referred to 10 the dervative financial
nstruments note below The accounting policies set out below have
been consistently appled in prepanng both the 2009 and 2010
financial statements

Critical accounting judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with adopted
IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptons that affect the apphcation of polcies and reported
armounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses The
estimates and assocrated assumptions are based on histoncal
expenence and vanous other factors that are beleved to be
reasonable undar the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
abiities that are not readily apparent from olher sources Actual
results may differ from these estimates The estimates and
underlying assumplions are revewed on an ongoing basis

The esumates and assumptions that have a significant nsk of
causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
labilities in the next inancial year are sted below

) Imparment of goodwil!

Determining whether goodwill 1s impaired reguires an estimation of
the value in use of cash generating units (CGUs) to which gocdwill
has been allocated The value in use calcutation involves an
estmation of the future cash flows of CGUs and also the selection of
appropriate discount rates which involves judgement, to calculate
present values {see note 10)

{1} Defined benefit pension scheme labilities

Determining the value of the future defined benefit obligation requires
Judgement in respect of the assumptions used to calculate present
values These include future merality discount rate, inflation and
salary increases Management makes these judgements in
consultation with an independent actuary Detads of the estimates
and judgements 1n respect of the current year are given in note 15

(M Amortisation of intangibles and imparment

The perods of amortisation of intangible assels require judgements
to be made on the esimated useful ivas of the intangible assets 1o
determine an appropnate rate of amorusation Future assessments of
impairment may lead to the writing off ol certan amounts of
intangible assets and the consequent charge in the Consohdated
income statement for the accelerated amortisation

(v} Capitalisation of development costs

Product development costs are capitalised once a project has
reached a certain stage of development and these costs are
subsequenily amortised over a five year penod Judgements are

required to assess whether the new product development has
reached the approprate point for capitalisation of costs 1o begin
Should a oroduct be subsequently cbsoleted, the accumulated
capiialsed development costs would need to be immediately wniten
off in the Consoldated income statement

New, revised or changes to existing accounting standards
1AS1 (revised) ‘Presentation of financial statements’ became effective
1st January 2009 The rewision has resulted n mnor changes io the
presentation of the pamary statements

IFRS B 'Operating segments’ became efiective on 1st January 2008
Tris new standard has resulted 1n changes to segmental reporting
from that reported in the 2009 Annual report Reporiable segments
have been determined on the basis of the information supphed to the
Board for the purposes of assessing performance and the allocation
of resources

Amendments to IAS 32 Presentation’, IAS 39 ‘Financial
instruments’, tFRS 7 *Financal instrumenis Disclosures’ and I1AS 27
'Consolidated and separate financial statements' became effective
before the year end and have not had a matenal impact on

the Group

IFRS 3 'Business combinations (ravised)’ bacame effective on 1st

July 2009 and results in acquisiion costs being expensed, rather

than included within the cost of the investment This change has not

had a maternal impact on the financial statements '

IAS 23 'Borrowing ¢osts’ amendment became effective on 1st
January 2009 and requires borrowing costs which meet certain
critena to be capitalised The Group does not currently have any
material borrowing or interest costs

IFRIC 14 1AS 19 'The Lsimit on a Defined Benefit Asset Minimum
Funding Reguirements and therr interaction’ provides guidance on
assessing the imitin *AS 19 on the amount of surplus that can be
recognised as an asset It also explains how the pension asset or
habiity may be affected by a statutory minimum funding requirement
This interpretation became effective for this year, and it has not had
a matenal impact on the finangial statements

IFRIC 16 ‘Hedges of a Net Investiment in a Foreign Operation’
provides guidance on identifying the foreign currency rnisks that
qualify as a nedged risk (n the hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation, where, within a group, hedging instruments that are
hedges of a net mvesiment 1n a foreign operation can ba held to
qualfy for hedge accounting and how an entity should determing
the amounts 1o be rectassified from equity to profit or loss for both
the hedaing instrument and the hedged item Trus interpretation
became effective for this year, and 1t has not had a material impact
on the financial statements

IAS 24 '‘Related party disclosures' clanfies the defirwtion of related
parties and becomas effective from 1st January 2011 Thisis

not expected to have a matenal effect on the financial

statement disclosures




1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group Conlrol exists when
the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtan benefits from its
activites The financial statements of subsidianes are included In the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases

Associates are those entives in which the Group has significant
nfluence but not control over the financial and operating policies
The consalidated financial statements include the Group's share of
the total recognised iIncome and expense of associates an an eguity
accounted basis from the date that sigrificant influence commences
untll the date that significant influence ceases

Revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods 1s recognised in the Consolidated
ncome statement when the significant rgks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, which s the time of
despatch Where certain products require installaton, part of the
revenue may be deferred untl the installabon s complete

No revenue 18 recogrised if there are significant uncertainties
regarding recovery of the consideration due, or the pessible return
of goods

Foreign currencies

Foreign subsidiaries’ results are translated into Sterling at weighted
average exchange rates for the year, which 1s effected by translating
gach foreign subsidiary's monthly results at exchange rates
apphcable to each of the respective months Assets and habilites
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated into Sterling at the foreign exchange rate rulng at that
date Differences on exchange resulting from the translation of
overseas assels and labilies are recegnised directly in equity

Gains and losses ansing on currency borrowings used to hedge the
foreign currency exposure on the net assets of the loreign
operalions, are accounted for directly in equity 10 the extent that
hedge accounting cnteria are met and are included in the
Consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome and expense

See the note on denvative financial instruments betow, for the
accounting pohicies for forward exchange coniracts and
currency borrowings

Derwvative financial instruments

The Group uses forward exchange contracts 1o hedge its exposure
10 foreign exchange nsk ansng from operational and financing
activities In accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not
held or 1ssue denvative financial iInstruments for trading purposes
However, forward contracts that do not qualty for hedge accounting
would be accounted for as trading instrumeris

Cash flow hedges

Ferward exchange contracts are recogrised initially at cost and then
subseqguently remeasured at farr value Where a forward contract 1s
designatad as a hedge of the vanabiliy i future cash inflows the
effective part of any gain or loss on the forward contract 1s
recognised directly in equily Any effective cumulative gain or loss 1s
removed {rom equity and recognised in the Consoldated income
statement at the same tume as the hedged transaction The
ineffective part of any gain or loss 1s recogrused in the Consolidated
ncome statement immediately

It the hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to take place, the
cumulative urreahsed gain or foss held in eguity 1s recogrised in the
Consoldated income staterment immediately

The effectiveness of cash flow hedges 1s tested on 2 monthly basis
by companng the cash inflows with the hedging amounts

Hedge of net investment in foreign operation

The portion of the gain or loss on an instrument used to hedge a net
investment in a foreign operation that 1s determined to be an effective
hedge 15 recognised dwecity in equily  Any ineffectve portion s
recogrised immediately in the Consolidated income statement

The effectiveness of the hedging s tesied monthly

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Businass combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase
method In respect of business acquisiicns, goodwill arsing on
acquisition represents the difference between the cost of the
acguisition and the farr value of the net identifiable assets acquired,
net of deferred tax Identffiable intangibles are those which can be
sold separately or which anse from legal nghts regardless of whether
thase nghts are separable

Goodwill 1s stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses It
15 not amortised but is tested annually for imparrment or earlier if
there are any indicaticns of Impairment

The annual impairment review Involves comparing the carrying
amount to the estmated recoverabls amount and recognising an
impairment loss If the recoverable amount 1s lower Impairment
losses are recognised through the Consobdated income statement

Intangible assets such as customer lists, patents, trade marks, know
hew and intellectual property that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less amoriisation and imparrment losses Amortisation
1s charged to the Consoltdated income staternent on a straight-line
basis aver the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets The
estimated useful ives of the intangible assets included in the
Consolidated balance sheet reflect the benefit derved by the Group
and vary from 5 to 10 years

Intangible assets - research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities s recognised in the Consolidated
income statement as an expense as incurred Expenditure on
development activities 1s capitalised if the product or process 1S
technically and commercizally feasible and the Company intends and
has the technical ability and sufficient resources to complete
development future economic benefits are probable and the
Company can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
iMangible asset durning its development Development activities
involve a plan or design for the production of new o substantially
improved products or processes The expenditure capitalised
includes the cost of matenals, direct labour and an appropnate
proporton of overheads Other development expenditure 1s
recognised in the Consolidated income statement as an expense as
ncurred Capitalised development expenditure 15 stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and less accumulated iImpairment losses

Intangible assets — software hicences

Intangible assets comprising software licences that are acquired by
the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
imparrment losses Amortisation s charged on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful Iife of the assets The useful Iife of each of
these assets i1s assessed on an individual basis and they range from
2 to 10 years
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32 Notes continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Jand 15 not depreciaied Other assels are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation Depreciation 1s provided o waite off the
cost of assets less ther estimated residual value on a straight-ine
basis over ther estimated useful economic kves as follows

Freehold buldings 50 years
Ptant and equipment 3to 10 years
Vehicles 3to 4 years

Warranty provisions

The Group provides a warranty from the date of purchase on all its
products This s typically for a twelve-month penod, atthough up o
three years i1s given for a small number of products A warranty
provision is ncluded In the financial statemants, which 15 calculated
on the basis of histoncal returns and internal qualty reports

Employee benefits

The Group operates ceninbutery pension schemes which for UK
and Insh employeeas, were of the defined bensefit type up tc 5th Aprd
2007 and 31st December 2007 respectively, at which time they
ceased any future accrual for existing members and were closed to
new members

The schemes are administered by trusiees who are independent of
the group finances

Pension scheme assets of the defined benefit schemes are
measured using market valug Pension scheme liabilities are
measured using a projected unit method and discounted at the
current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of eguivalent
term and currency Lo the bability The expected return on the
schames assets and the mterest on the schemes labilities ansing
from the passage of time are included in financial Income and
financial expenses respectively The Group recognises actuarnal gans
and lesses in full in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and expense The pension schames surpluses, 1o the extent
that they are considered recoverable or deficits are recogrused in full
and presented on the face of the Conschdated balance sheet under
Employee benefits

Foreign-based employees are covered by state, defined benefit and
privaie pension schemes In tharr countries of residence Actuanal
valuations of fareign pension schemes were not obtained, apart from
'reland, because of the smaller number of foreign employees

For defined contnbution schemes, the amount charged 1o the
Consclidated income statement represents the contnbutions payable
to the schemes in respect of the accounting penod

Accruals are made for holiday pay, based on a caiculation of the
aumber of days hohday earned dunng the year but not yet taken

Inventory and work 1n progress

Inventery and work in progress 1s valued at the lower of cost and net
realsable value In respect of work in progress and finished goods,
cost includes all production overheads and the attributable
proportion of indrect overhead expenses which are required to bring
nventones to ther present location and condition Overheads are
absorbed into inventones on the basis of normal capacity

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equiva'ents comprise cash balances and short-term
{(with an onginal matunty of less than three months) deposiis

Bank overdrafis that are repayable on demand form pan of cash
and cash eguvalents for the purpose of the Consoldated statement
of cash flow

Dividends

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a
anthty at thai date 1o the extent that they are appropriately dectared
and authorised and ne fonger at the discretion of the Company
Unpad dwvigends that do not meet this cntena are disclosed in the
Drreciors report

Taxation

Tax on the profit for the year compnises current and deferred tax
Tax 1s recognised in the Consolidated income statement except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in
which case 1t 1s recogrised in the Consolidated statement of
comprehensiva Income and expense

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year using tax rates enacted or substantively enacied at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
previous years

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and labihties for financial reporting
purpeses and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following
temporary differences are not prowided for the initial recognition of
goodwill, the inhial recogniion of assets or labilites that affect nedher
accounting nor taxable prafit other than in a business combination
and differences relating to investments in subsidianies to the extent
that they will probably not reverse In the foreseeable future The
amount of deferred tax provided 15 based on the expected manner
of realisation or setilement of the carmang amount of assets and
habities using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheel date

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it 1s
probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which the
assel can be utilsed

Exceptional items

Exceplional itams are items which due te therr size, incidence and
non-recurnng naturg have been classified separately in order to draw
them to the attention of the reader of the accounts and, In
management’s Judgement, to show more accurately the underlying
results of the Group  Such itemns are included within the Consolidated
income statemeant caption to which they relate and are disclosed
separately on the face of the Consolidated income statement

Going concern

The Group s business activities together with the factors likely to
affect its future development, performance and position are set out In
the Financial review on pages 10 tc 14, where also given are details
of the financial and hquidity positions  In addition, noie 22 in the
financial statements includes the Group's objectives and palicies for
managing Its capital, detals of its fimancial nstrurments and hedging
activities and 1ts exposures to credt nsk and iiquidity nsk

The Group has considerable financial resources at 1ts disposal and
the directors have considered tha current financial projections As a
consequence, the direciors believe that the Group 1s well placed 1o
manage its business risks successfully

After making enguines, the directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Company and the Group have adequate resources {o
continue In operattonal existence for the foreseeable future
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparnng the Annua! report and accounts



2 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Renishaw manages IS operations In two segments, comprising metrology and healthcare products The results of these segments are
regularly reviewead by the Board to allocate resources to segments and to assess thar performance The Group evaluates periormance
of the segments on the basis of revenue and profits The revenue, depreciation and amortisation, and operating profit for each reportable

segment was

Year ended 30th June 2010 Metrology Healthcare Total

£'000 £'000 £000
Revenue 162,118 19,489 181,607
Depreciation and amortisation 12,725 1,745 14,470
Operating profit before exceptional item 31,637 (3,442) 28,095
Exceptional stem - Impayment wrile-down (1,668} - (1,668)
Share of profits from associates 479 - 479
Net financial income 151
Profit beforae tax 27,057
Year ended 30th June 2009 Metrology Healthcare Total

£ 000 £'000 £000
Revenue 152 894 18 353 171 247
Depreciation and amortisation 12,415 2,349 14,764
Cperating prefit before exceptional item 10,315 (4,324} 5,991
Exceptional item - Redundancy cosis {3.808) (313} (4,12%)
Share of profits from associates 317 - 317
Net financial Income 2,535
Prctit before tax 4,722

There 15 no allocation of assets and liabilities to operating segments Depreciation 1s included within certain other overhead expenditure which

1s atlocated to segments on the basis of the level of actvity

The analysis of revenue by geographical market was

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Far East 71,051 52,006
Continental Europe 52,147 63,222
North & South Amernca 41,485 40,071
United Kingdom 10,650 11,259
Other regions 6,304 4,689
Total group revenue 181,607 171,247

Reveriue n the above table has baen allocated to regions based on the geographical location of the customer Individual countries which

comprised more than 10% of group revenue werg

USA
Chuna
Germarny
Japan

2010
£'000

35,381
34,211
23,042
19,552

2009
£7000

34,795
19,458
28,385
20,946

There was no revenug from transaclions with a single external customer amounting to 10% or more of the Group's total revenue
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2 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED

The following table shows the analysis of non-current assets by geographical region

2010 2008
£'000 £'000
United Kingdom 71,660 76,088
Overseas 36,639 36.273
Total non-current assets 108,299 112,371
No overseas country had non-current assets amounting to 10% or more of the Group's total non-current assets
3 PERSCNNEL EXPENSES
2010 2009
The aggregate payroll costs for the year were £000 £ 000
Wages and salaries 65,159 65775
Compuisory social securty contributions 8,402 8,330
Contributions to defined contnbution plans 4,983 5,944
78,544 80,049
Redundancy costs - 4,121
Total payroli costs 78,544 84,170
The average number of persons employed by the Group dunng the year was
2010 2009
Number Nurmber
Continental Europe 203 218
Far East 138 145
Amercas 109 124
UK {including Ireland) 1,311 1,537
Other regions 140 130
Average number of employees 1,901 2,154
4 FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES
2010 2009
Financial income £'000 £ 0C0
Expecled return on assels in the pension schemes {note 15} 5,671 7,593
Bank interest recenvable 255 1,161
Total financial income 5,926 8,754
2010 2009
Financial expenses £'000 £'000
Interest on pension schemes hatiliiies (note 15) 5,597 5 964
Bank inierest payable 178 255
Total {inancial expenses 5,775 6,219




5 PROFIT BEFORE TAX

2010 2009
Included in the profit before tax are the following cosis/income) Notes £'000 £ 000
Depreciation of property plant and equpment (@ 7,907 B,B9C
Amertisation of intangibles (@ 6,563 5874
Research and development expenditure (b} 22,787 23,630
{Profit}loss on sale of property, plant and equipment © (31) 151
Auditors
Fees payable to the Company s auditor for audit of the Company’s annual accounts © 75 75
Auant of subsidiary undertakings pursuant to fegislation © 159 165
Tax services () 240 385
Fees n respect of pension schemes - audit {c) 9 9
- advisory {c) 3N 48
Other services te) 51 99

These costs/(income) can be found undsr the following headings in the Consohdated iIncome statement (a) within cost of sales, distnbution
costs and administrative expenses (D) within cost of sales, and (¢} within administrative expenses

6 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 2010 2009
£'000 £ 000
Current tax
UK cerporation tax on profits for the year 14 -
Cverseas tax on profits for the year 3,187 3,415
Adjustmenis for prior years 1,800 -
Totat current tax 5,001 3,415
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of other temporary differences 744 (2 291)
Tax charge on profit 5,745 1,124
Effective tax rate (based on profit before tax) 21% 24%

The tax for the year 15 lower (2009 lower) than the UK standard rate of corporation tax of 28% (2009 28%) The diflerences are explained

as follows

2010 2009

£°000 £'000
Profit before tax 27,057 4,722
Tax at 28% (2009 28%) 7,576 1322
Effects of
Different tax rates applicable »» overseas subsidianes (3,437) (1,397)
Rasearch and development tax credit {1,376) {1,471)
Adjustmants for prior years 1,800 -
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 231 80
Compames with unreleved tax 1osses 495 2,625
Exceptional item with no tax effect 467 -
Cther differences {(11) 85
Tax charge on profit 5,745 1,124

The 1ax calculations do not account for the reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 28% 1o 27%, to come nto effect on ist Aprl 207 1
Legislatien to reduce the UK corporation lax rate to 24% over a penod of years has yet 10 be substantively enacted The change in the lax rate

irom 28% 10 27% would have decreased the deferred iax charge in the Conschdated income statement by approximately £30,000
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7 DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION

2010 2009
The total remuneration of the directors was £'000 £'000
Salaries and fees 1,793 1,946
Benefiis g9 89
Pension coninbutions 125 140
Total remuneration of the direciors 2,017 2175
2010 2009
Salary Pension Salary Pension
& tees Benefits contributions* Total and fees Berefits contributions® Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
Charrman
Sir Dawvd McMurtry 470 2 - 472 872 - . 572
Other executive
directors
D J Deer 307 32 - 339 353 31 B 384
B R Taylor 352 25 53 430 405 21 63 489
A C G Raberts 272 25 33 3356 251 22 39 312
G McFarlang 272 15 34 321 253 15 38 306
Non-gxecutive
J P McGeehan 30 - - 30 28 - - 28
T D Snowden 30 - - 30 28 - - 28
T B Garthwaite 30 - - 30 28 - - 28
W H Whiteley 30 - - 30 28 - - 28
1,793 99 125 2017 1946 89 140 2176

* As noted n the Directors remuneration report on page 23 certain directors are entitled te a contribution of 15% of salary for retirement
provision This can either be taken as a contribution to a pension scheme or as cash

The voluntary salary reduction of 20%, implemented in February 2009, was restored to all staff for the year ended 30th June 2010, including
directors, with the exception of three executive directors who elected 1o continue the reduction through to 30th June 2010

Benefits include company cars (or cash alternative), private telephone and private health nsurance There were no directors’ share options
outstanding at any tme dunng the year or the previous year

For the pension contributions above not taken as cash the contributions have been paid by the Company to the personal pension plans

of the directors for the relevant penods, except for G McFarland, where the amounts paid are those to the Company's defined contribution
scheme In which he participates The values requied to be reported in respect of the defined benefit scheme for G McFarland were

Year ended 30th June 2010

AB* at 30th Increase in AB Increase in AB Transfer value of  Transfer value Transfer value of  Increase in transfer
June 2010 excluding inflation  including inflation (A) tess director's of AB at 30th AB at 30th  value less director's
(A} contnbution June 2009 June 2010 contnbution

£pa £ £ £ £ £ £
24,849 - - - 300,113 380,489 80,376

Year ended 30th June 2008

AB at 30th Increase n AB Increase in AB Transfer value of  Transfer value  Transfer value of  Decrease in {ransfer
June 2008  excluding inflaion  including inflation {A) less director s of AB at 30th AB at 30th  value less director's
(A} contripution June 2008 June 2009 contnbution

Cpa N £ £ £ £ e
25,178 - 1,200 - 361,887 300,113 {61,774)

© AB = Accrued benefits




8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluled garnings per share are calculated on earnings of £21 312,000 (2009 £3,598 000} and on 72 788,543 shares, baing the
number of shares n Issue durng both years There 1s no difference between the weighted average earnings per share and the basic and

diluted earrungs per share

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year ended 30th June 2010 Freehold Assets in the

land and Plant and Motor course of

builldings equipment vehicles construction Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £°000

Cost
At 1st July 2009 65,066 76,133 5,129 480 146,808
Additions 512 1,431 496 429 2,868
Transfers - 460 - (460) -
Disposals - (882) (729) - (1,611}
Currancy adjustment 2,411 265 163 - 2,839
At 30th Jupe 2010 67,989 77,407 5,059 449 150,804
Depreciation
At 1st Juty 2009 13,541 56,226 3,458 - 73,225
Charge for the year 1,417 5,766 724 - 7,907
Released on disposals - (805) {647} - {1,452)
Currency adjustment 333 273 86 - 692
At 30th Juna 2010 15,291 61,460 3,621 - 80,372
Net book value
At 30th June 2010 52,698 15,947 1,438 449 70,632
AL 30th June 2008 51,625 19,807 1,671 480 73,5683

At 30th June 2010, properties with a net book value of £23,393,000 (2009 £23,815,000) were subject to a registered charge to securs the

UK defined benefit pansion scheme Labiities

Additions to assets In the course of construction of £429,000 {2009 £8682,000) compnse £95,000 (2009 £136,000) for freehold land and
buldings and £2334,000 {2009 £726,000) for plant and equipment

Year ended 30th June 2009 Freehold Assets in the

land and Plant and Mator course of

buldings equipment vehicles construction Total

£ 000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000

Cost
At st July 2008 57 415 70088 4,760 565 132,828
Additions 3,679 5,473 991 862 11,008
Transfers 381 568 - (947) -
Disposals - (974) 810) - {1,784)
Currency adjustment 3,591 a80 188 - 4759
At 30th June 2009 65,066 76,133 5,129 480 146,808
Depreciation
At 1st July 2008 11292 49,650 3,120 - 64,062
Charge for the year 1,548 6,430 912 - 8,890
Released on disposals - 681) (693) - (1,374}
Currency adjusiment 701 827 119 - 1,647
At 30th June 2009 13 541 56 226 3,458 - 73,225
Net book value
At 30th June 2008 51,525 16,907 1,671 480 73583
At 30th June 2008 46,123 20,438 1,640 565 68,766
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10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS Internally Software licences
Other generated

Year ended 30th June 2010 Goodwill on ntangible development In the course

consolidation assets costs In use of acquisition Total

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
Af 1st July 2009 5,569 5,416 28,973 11,252 - 51,210
Additions - 50 6,968 19 117 7,154
At 30th June 2010 5,569 5,466 35,941 11,27 117 58,364
Amortisation
At 1st July 2009 - 1,150 15,829 6,548 - 23,627
Charge for the year - 653 4,692 879 - 6,224
At 30th June 2010 - 1,803 20,521 7,427 - 29,751
Net book value
At 30th June 2010 5,569 3,663 15,420 3,844 117 28,613
At 30th Juna 2009 5 569 4,266 13,144 4,704 - 27,683

Goodwill acquired has ansen on the acquisition of 8 number of businesses and has an indeterminable useful Ife Therefore it 18 not amorised but
15 tesied for imparment annually and at any point dunng the year when an indicator of impairment exists Goodwillis allocated to the Group's cash
generating units (CGUs), which are currently the statutory entiies acquired This 1s the lowest level In the Group at which goodwaill is monitored for

imparment and 1s at a fower level than the Group s operating segments 2010 2009
The analysis of acquired goodwilt on consolidation 1s £000 £'000
Acquisition of itp GmbH 2,372 2,372
Acquisition of Renishaw Diagnostics Limited {84 8%) (2009 75%} (formerty D3 Technologies Lumited) 1,784 1,784
Acguisition of Renishaw Mayfield S A (75%) 1,215 1215
Acquisition of PulseTeq Limited (75%) 198 168
Total acquired goodwil! 5,569 5,569

The recoverable amounts of acquired goodwill are based on value in use calculations These calculations use cash flow projections with assurnptions

as follows

np GmbH (part of the metrology reportable segment) actual operating results and an average growth rate of 5% for 5 years with a nil termunal growth rate
(2009 same basis) Renishaw Diagnostics Limited, PulseTeq Limited and Renishaw Mayfield S A (all in the healthcare repartable segment) - 5 year business
plans with a nl terminal growth rate {2009 same basis)

A pre-tax discount rate of 12% has been used in discounting the projected cash flows of itp GmbH (2009 13%) and 15% for Rerishaw Diagnostics Limited
{2009 13%)} PulseTeq Limited (2009 13%) and Renishaw Mayfield S A (2009 13%) These have been set on the basis of these being appropnate rates for
a market paricipant On this bases, no imparment wnte downs are required  There s significant headroom in all the above and for an imparment 1o anse,
there would need {o be a sgnificant matenal detenoration in business, this 1S considered to be remate An increase in 5% in the discount rate would not
result in an imparment

Internally Software licences
Other generated

Year ended 30th June 2009 Goodwill on ntangibie  development In the course

consolidation assets costs Inuse of acguisition Total

£ 000 £000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000

Cost
At 1st July 2008 4156 2 829 22,355 7,660 34 37 034
Additions 1,413 2,587 6,618 3,462 41 14121
Transfers - - - 75 (75) -
Currency adjustment - - - 55 - 55
At 30th June 2009 5,569 5,416 28,973 11252 - 51,210
Amortisation
At 1st July 2008 - 573 11,396 5,980 - 17,949
Charge ior the year - 577 4,433 524 - 5,534
Currency adjustment - - - 44 - 44
At 30ih June 2009 - 1,150 15,829 6,548 - 23,527
Net book value
Al 30th June 2009 5,569 4,266 13,144 4,704 - 27,683
At 30th June 2008 4,156 2,256 10 959 1,680 34 19,085




11 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Group has the following Irvestments in associatas (afl nvestments being in the ordinary share capital of the associate) whase accounting

years end on 30th June unless otherwse stated

Ownership Ownership

Country of 2010 2009

incorporation % %

RLS menina tehnika d 0 © Sloverua 50 50
Metrology Software Products Limuted England & Wales 50 50
Delcam plc (31st December) England & Wales 20 20

Delcam ple 1s Iisted on AIM at the London Stock Exchange
1 524,052 shares

Its share price on 30th June 2010 was £2 40 (2009 £2 40) The Company holds

Movements during the year were 2010 2008

£'000 £'000
Balance at the beginning of the year 7,085 6,788
investments made during the year - 400
Dwvidends recewved (80) (80)
Share of profits of associates 47¢ 317
Amortisation of intangioles (340) (340)
Other comprehensive iIncome and expense (324) -
Impairment of nvesiment in Delcam plc (1,668} -
Balance at the end of the year 5,152 7,085

Duning the year, the Board decided to wrie down its investment of Delcam plc, onginally purchased at a price of £4 00 per share (whose
results are reported as part of the metrology reperting segment}, to reflect the prevailling share price of £2 40 as &t 30th June 2010 An
impairment charge of £1 668,000 1s shown as an exceptional item in the Consolidated income statement

2010 2009
Summarnsed aggregated financial information for associates £'000 £ 000
Ravenue 8,185 7,922
Share of profits for the year 479 317
Assels 7,344 701
Liabilities 3,432 2934

12 ACQUISITIONS
The Group made no new acguisitons during the year
Year ended 30th June 2009

Renishaw Mayheld S A

On 20th November 2008, the Group acquired a 75% shareholding in Schaerer Mayiield Neuromate AG {since renamed Renishaw Mayfield
S A), based in Switzerland, a leading manufacturer of surgical robots for neurosurgery The initial consideration was £1,145,000 (including
legal costs of £107,000) and there 1s an option to purchase the remaining 25% shareholding, calculated at 7 times the operating profit of the
company for the year ending 31st December 2012 {with also the option for the minority shareholders to purchass such number of shares
from the Group as would give the minonty a majonty shareholding, at the onginal purchase price, should the Group not exercise its option)
The far values of assets acquired were

Book value  Adustmenis Far value

£'000 £'000 £ 000

Tangible fixed assets 5 - 5
Intangible fixed assets 1,415 486 1,901
Inventories N - g1
Debtars cash and prepayments 264 - 264
Crediors (2,355) - (2,355)

Far vatue of habites acquired {580) 486 (94}
Non-controling interest 24
Gooedwilt on consohdation 1,215
Consideration paid, including costs of £107,000 1145

The far value adjusimeant 15 In respect of the valuation of acquired Intangible assets, which compnse patents and licences Goodwill exists
due {0 the potential opportunities possible in the future from combining this business with ather research and development projects being

undertaken in other Group companies
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12 ACQUISITIONS CONTINUED
PulseTeq Limited

On 1st July 2008 the Group acqurred a further 25% shareholding in PulseTeq Limited by additional investment in the share capital of the
company, which was 1ormerly accounted for as an associate and 18 now accounted for as a subsidiary undertaking PulseTeq Limited
manufactures and sells cols for the enhancement of images from MRI scanners The far values of assets acqured were

Book value  Adjustments Farr value

£'000 £ 000 £'000

Tangible fixed assets 48 - 48
Intangible assets - 198 168
Inveniornes a8 - a8
Debtors, cash and prepayments 205 - 205
Crediiors (157) - {157}
Fair value of assets acgurred 144 198 342
Non-controling interest (B6)
Goodwill on consolidation 198
Consideration paid a54

No adjustment was deemed necessary (0 the valuation of intangible assets from the valuation at the time of the imtial Investment

Renishaw Mayfield S A s and PulseTeq Limited's contnbution to the consohdated profit before tax since acquisition and therr histoncal

results for ther previous full year were

Renishaw Mayfield S A PulseTeq Limited
21st November 2008 Year to 31st Year to 30th  Year {0 30th
to 30th June 2009  December 2008 June 2009 June 2008
£'00C £ 000 £'000 £'o00
Revenue 296 341 298 202
Expenses 707 831 398 366
Loss before tax 411} {590} {100} (164)
Non-controling interest {103) n/a (25) 82)
Group share of relaned reserves (308) n/a (75} (82
13 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Balances at the end of the year were 2010 2009
Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilties Net
£'000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
Property, plant and equipment - (3,760) {3,760} - (2.817) (2817)
intangible assets 860 (4,879) (4,019} - {4,241) {4,241)
Intragroup trading (inventory} 5,308 - 5,309 3,952 - 3,952
Pension schemes 9,694 - 9,694 5,70 - 5701
Other 4,193 {6,794) {2,601) 4512 {3.560) a52
Balance at the end of the year 20,056 (15,433) 4,623 14 165 {10818) 3,547
2010 2009
The movements in the deferred tax balance dunng the year were £'000 £'000
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,547 {2.357)
Movements in the Consolidaled incorme statement (744) 2,291
Movement in refation 1o the cash flow hedging reserve (2,173) 452
Movement in relalicn 10 the pension schemes 3,993 3.161
Total movement in the Conselidated statement of comprehensive income and expense 1,820 3,613
Balance at the end of the year 4,623 3 547

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses carned forward of £5 513,000 (2009 £3,518,000) due 1o the uncertainty over

thewr recoverability



14 DERIVATIVES

Denivatives {non-current assets} of £4,002 000 (2008 £4,020,000) compnse the far value of cutstanding forward contracts with positive
far values which mature after more than one year Dervatives {current assets) of £1,158,000 (2009 £709 000) compnse the far value of
outstanding forward contracts with positive far values, which mature within one year

Denvatives (non-current labilities) of £1,575,000 (2008 £6,627,000) compnsa tha far value of outstanding forward contracts with negative
far valugs, which mature after more than one year Dervatives (current habiities) of £3,346,000 (2008 £5,623,000} comprise the far value of
outstanding forward contracts wath negative far vatues, which mature within one year

15 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Group operaies a number of pension schemes throughout the world  The major scheme, which covers the UK-based employees, was
of the defined beneft type In 2007 this scheme along with the Insh defined benefit scheme, ceased any future accrual for current
members and both were closed o new members UK and Irish employees are now covered by defined coninbution schemes

The 1otal pension cost of the Group for the year was £4,983 000 (2009 £5 944 000) of which £125,000 (2009 £140,000) related to
directors and £1 516 000 (2009 £1,657 000) related to overseas schemes

The latest full aciuara! valuation of the UK defined benefit scheme was carried out at September 2006 and updated to 30th June 2010 by
a qualified independent actuary The major assumghons used Dy the actuary for the UK and Insh schemes were

30th June 2010 30th June 2009 30th June 2008
UK scheme Irish scheme UK scheme  Insh scheme UK scheme  Insh scheme
Rate of increase v pension payments 33% 2.4% 33% 2 5% 38% 27%
Discount rate 53% 4 4% 6 2% 5 5% 6 2% 6 5%
Inflation rate 34% 2 4% 3 4% 2 5% 41% 2 7%
Expected return on equities 81% 71% 8 3% 7 4% 9 1% B 2%
Retirement age 64 65 64 65 64 65

The mortality assumption used for 2010 18 PCAQQ, year of birth, medium cohort (2008 short cohort), which reflects increasing hife expectancy
The assets and iabilities n the defined benefit schemes were

30th June %of 23CthJune %of 30thJune % of 30thdune %ol 30thJune % of

2010 tota! 2000 total 2008 total 2007 total 2006  total
£'000 assets £°000 assets £'000 assets £'000 assets £'000 assets
Market valug of assets
Equties 81,737 98 68,538 98 B2,576 a7 89,924 98 70 836 98
Bonds and cash 1,447 2 1,630 2 2,574 3 1,675 2 1,377 2

83,184 100 70,168 1c0 85,150 100 91,499 100 72,213 100

Aciuanal value of iabiities (120,435) {92,626) {96,205) {85,937) {81 051)
{Deficit)/surplus in the schermes (37,251) (22,458) (11,055} 5,562 {18,838}
Deferred tax thergon 9,694 5701 2 996 (1,791} 5451

Note 39 gives the anafysis of the UK defined benefit scheme For the Insh defined benefit scheme, beng the other scheme included here,
the rmarket value of assels at the end of tha year was £4,780,000 (2009 £4,177,000) and the actuanal value of labilities was £8,866,000
{2009 £7 434 000) The expected rates of return are based on market conditions at 30th June 2010 and represent the best estimate of
iuture returns, allowing for nsk gremiums where approprate

For a sensitivity analysis of certain elements of the pension fund, see the note in the Financial reviaw on page 14

The movements in the schemes assets and habilities were

Year ended 30th June 2010 Assets Liabities Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at the beginning of the year 70,168 (92,6286) (22,458)
Expected return on pension schemes’ assels 5,671 - 5,671
Interest on pension schemes' Yabilives - {5,597) {5,597)
Actuanal gain/{loss) 7,345 (22,212) (14,867)
Balance at the end of the year 83,184 (120,435) (37,251}
Year ended 30th June 2009 Assetls Liabiities Total
£°000 £'000 £000
Balance at the beginnuing of the year 85,150 {986,205) (11,058)
Expected return on pension schemes’ assets 7,593 - 7,583
Interest on pension schemes' labiities - {6 964) {5.964)
Actuanal {lossy/gain {22,575) 9,643 (13,032}

Balance at tha end of the year 70,168 (92,626} (22 458)
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15 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS CONTINUED

The income/(expense) recogrused in the Consolidated ncome statement was 2010 2009

£°000 £ 000
Expected return on pension schemes assets 5,671 7,593
Interest on pension schemes' liabihties (5,597} (5,964}
Total income recogrused in the Consolidated income statement 74 1.629

The expected return on pension schemes’ assets and the interest on pension schemes’ habiliies are recogrised within financial Incomea and

inancial expenses respeclively

The analysis of the amount recognised in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income and expense was 2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets 9,920 (21,601}
Experience l0ss ansing on scheme labilities 915 (3,954}
Changes in financial assumptions {25,702) 12,523
Toial amount recognised in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome and expense {14,867) {13,032)
The history of experience gains and losses s
Year ended Year endad Year ended Year ended Year ended
30th June 2010 3Cth June 2008  30th June 2008  30th June 2007 3Cth June 2006
Difference between the expected and actual
return on scheme assets
amount (£'000} 9,920 (21,601) {14,591} 7,147 6,492
percentage of scheme assets 12% {319%) (17%} 8% 9%
Experience gans and losses on scheme liabiliies
amount (£ 000} 915 (3,954) - (3,421) (180)
percentage of present value of scheme labilities 1% (4%} - (4%) -
Total amount recognised in the Consolidated statement
of recogrised Income and expense
amount {£'000} (14,867) (13.032) (20,541) 3,144 (147}
percentage of present value of scheme liabilitres {12%)} {14%) (21%) 4% -
The assumptions used for mortality rates for members, medium cohort (2009 short gohort) at the 2010 2009
expecied relirement age of 65 years are years years
Male currently aged 65 217 217
Female currently aged 65 240 240
Mate currently aged 45 229 228
Fernate currently aged 45 250 249

Under the defined benefit deficit funding plan, there are no contributions expected to be made i the year ending 30th Jung 2011 There are
certain UK properties, owned by Renishaw plc which are subject to a registered charge to secure the UK delfined benefit pension scheme
labfites The trustees have the nght to enforce the charge to recover any deficit if an insolvency event cceurs in relation {o the Company
before 30th Septermber 2016 or if the Company has not made good any deficit by midright on 30th September 2016 No scheme assets
are invested in the Group s own equily The valuation of the liability applying (FRIC 14 does not give a higher value to the habibty than that

accounted for

Defined contribution pension habilities

The Group makes contributions to a number of defined conirbution plans around the world to prowde benefits for employees upon

retirement  The total expense relating 1o these plans in the year was £4,983,000 {2009 £5,944,000)




16 INVENTORIES

2010 2009
An analysis of inventories at the end of the year was £'000 £ 000
Raw materials 13,409 12,335
Work In progress 7,107 5,606
Finished goods 10,368 11,215
Balance at the end of the year 30,884 29,156

Dunng the year the amount of iInveniones recognised as an expense in the Consolidated incorme staternent was £59,310,000 (2009 £61,386,000)
and the amount of write-down of inventones recognised as an expanse in the Consolidated income statement was £434,000 (2009 £1,335,000)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2010 2009
An analysis of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year was £'000 £'000
Bank balances and cash n hand 17,355 10 468
Shart-term deposits 13,788 10020
Balance at the end of the year 31,143 20,488
18 PROVISIONS
Warranty provision

2010 2009
Movements duning the year were £'000 £ 000
Balance at the bagnning of the year 656 824
Ulilsed dunng the: year {599) (769)
Created in the year 482 601

(117) (168)
Balance at the end of the year 539 656

The warranty provsion has been caicutated on the basis of histoncal return-in-warranty information and other internal reports 1t is expected that
most of this expenditure will be ncurred In the next financial year and all expenditure will be incurred within three years of the balance shest date

19 OTHER PAYABLES

2010 2009
Balances at the end of {he year were £'000 £'000
Payroll taxes and social secunty 3,081 3,855
Other creditors and accruals 11,946 3781
Tota! other payables 15,027 7,716
The Group s exposure to currency and hquidity nisk refated to trade and other payables 1s disclosed in note 22
20 OTHER PAYABLES {(NON-CURRENT)
The deterred consideration of £1,222,000 (2009 £1,222,000) 1s In respect of the nvestiment in Renishaw Diagnostics Lumited, which 1s
payable over a five-year penod from the date of the inial investment
21 CAPITAlL AND RESERVES
Share capital 2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
72,788,543 ordinary shares of 20p each 14,558 14,558

The ordinary shares are the only class of share in the Company Halders of ordinary shares are entitled 10 vote at genaral meetings of the
Company and receive divdends as declared The Articles of Association of the Company do not contain any restricthions on the transfer of

shares nor on voting nghis
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21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES CONTINUED
Currency translation reserve

The currency translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statemenis of the
foreign operations, offset by forergn exchange differences on bank liabilities which have been accounted for directly in equity on account of

thermn beng classified as hedging items

Cash flow hedging reserve

The cash flow hedging reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences ansing from the valuation of forward exchange contracis which
are effecive bedges and mature after the year end These are valued on a mark-to-market basis, are accounted for directly in equity and
are recycled through the Consolidated income statement when the hedged item affects the Consolidated income statement The forward

contracts mature over the next three and a half years

2010 2009
Movements dunng the year were £'000 £'000
Balance at the beginning of the year (5,415) {4,252)
Amounts transferred to the Consolidated income statement 3,538 1,395
Revaluations dunng the year 2,049 {2.558)
Balance at the end of the year 172 {5,415}
Dividends paid

2010 2009
Dwidends paid comprised £'000 £ 000
2008 final dwvidend paid of 17 63p per share - 12 833
Intenm dividend pard of 4 00p per share (2009 7 76p, net of walvers) 2912 2,816
Total dvidends paid 2912 15,649

A final dwvidend in respect of the current financial year of 13 Bp per share 1s proposed, 1o be paid on 18th Octeber 2010 to shareholders on
the register on 17th September 2010, with an ex-dividend date of 15th September 2010

Other reserve

The other reserve 15 In relation 1o an additional Investment In Rervshaw Diagnostics Limited, increasing the Group's interest in its shareholding

from 80% to 84 8%

Non-controlling interest

2010 2008
Movements during the year were £'000 £'000
Balance at the beginning of the year 18 320
Share of investments 52 (29}
Share of loss for the year (502) (273}
Batance at the end of the vear {432) 18

The non-controling interest represents the minonty sharehotdings in Renishaw Diagnostics Limited (15 2%) (2009 25%) PulseTeq Limited

{25%) and Renishaw Mayfield S A (25%}

22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group has exposure to credit nisk, hguidity nsk and market nsk ansing from its use of financial nstruments This note presents inforrmation
about the Group s exposure to these fisks along with the Group's cbjectives, policies and processes for measunng and managing the risks

Credit nsk

The Group carnes a credit nsk, being the sisk of non-payment of trade recewables by its customers Credit evaluations are carnied out on
all new customers before credit 1s given above certan thresholds There 1s a spread of nsks ameng a large number of customers with no
significant concentration with one customer or In any one gecgraphical area The Group establishes an allowance for impairment in respect

of trade receivables where recoverability 1s considered doubtful

An analysis by currency of Group financial assets at the year end 1s as follows

Trade recenables Cther recevables Cash

Currency 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2000
£'000 £ 000 £000 £'000 £'000 £ 000

Pounds Sterling 3,466 2.373 8,009 6,615 11,637 15,535
UsS Dollar 19,358 8 283 217 177 6,764 3,068
Japanese Yen 6,240 2,796 610 426 1,765 320
Euro 12,263 7 706 525 735 3,721 (3 520)
Other 4,546 2,899 524 402 7,256 5,085
45,873 24 057 9,885 8,355 31,143 20,488
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2010 2009
The ageing of rade recevables past due, but not impared at the end of the year was £'000 £'000
Past due 0 -1 month 8,308 3,838
Past due 1 - 2 months 2,483 2301
Past due more than 2 months 445 303
Balance at the end of the year 11,236 6 442

2010 2009
Movements in the provision for Impawment of trade recewvables dunng the year were £000 000
Balance ai the begnning of the year 3,906 1,696
Changes in amounts provided 504 2,574
Amounts utilksed 421) (364)
Balance at the end of the year 3,989 3.908

Liguidity nisk

The Group s approach 1o managing hquidity 1S to ensure as far as possible, that  will always have sufficient kquidity to meet its habiliies
when due without incurring unaccepiable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation The Group is cash generative and uses
monthly cash flow forecasts 1o monitor cash regurements

In respect of net cash the carnang value approximates to fair value because of the short matunty of the deposits and borrowings  Interest
rates are floating and based on libor/iid, which can change over bme affecting the Group's interest income Aningrease of 1% N
interest rates would result In an increase In interest iIncome of approximaltely £140,000 The market value of forward exchange contracts s
determined by reference to market data

The contractual matunties of financial habilities at the year end were

Year ended 30th June 2010 Carrying
amount Upto1year 1-2years 2-5years
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade payables 10,440 10,440 - -
Cther payables 16,249 15,027 611 611
Provisicns 539 539 - -
Forward exchange contracts 4,921 3,346 1,115 460
32,148 29,352 1,726 1,071

Year ended 30th June 2009 Carrying
amount Upto 1 year 1-2years 2 - 5years
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Trade payables 6,588 8,588 - -
Other payables 8,938 8,938 - -
Prowvisions 656 856 - -
Forward exchange contracls 12,250 5623 4,313 2,314
28,432 21 805 4,313 2,314

For non-current other receivables of £4,002,000 (2009 £4,020 000), £723,000 {2009 £1,484,000) is recevable between 1 and 2 years and
£3,279 000 (2009 £2,538 000) 1s recevable between 2 and 5 years

The contracted cash flows for the financial habihbes are the same as the carrying values There Is no significant difference between the farr
value of linancial assets and financial labilities and therr carrying value in the Consohdated balance sheet

Under the disclosure requiremnents of IFRS 7, all farr value measurements of financial assets and labilites are considered 1o be categonsed
as Level 1
Market nsk

As noted in the Financial review under Risks and uncertainties, the Group operates in a number of foreign currencies with the mayonty of
salgs being made in these currencies but with a concentration of manufacturing in the UK, Ireland and Indha

Exchange rates and sensitivity analysis

The man exchange rate which may have a significant effect on the Group's results 1s the US Dollar The Group has hedged its forecasted
Eurc and Japanese Yen cash flows and hence there i1s not expected to be a significant impact on the Group's results resulbing from
fluctuations in these exchange rates against Sterling
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22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Exchange rates and sensitivity analysts {continued)

The fallowing are the exchange rates which have been applicable during the financial year Also noted is the increase In profit that a one US
Dollar cent change in exchange rale where the foreign currency 1s strengthening aganst Steriing, might have on the Group s resulis The
method of estimation Involves assessing the mpact of this currency on the Group s transactions assuming all other vanables are unchanged

2010 2009 Increase in

group profit of

Year end Average Year end Average one cent

exchange exchange exchange exchange movement

Currency rate rate rate rate £ 000
US Dollar 150 158 165 160 240
Japanese Yen 132 143 159 159 -
Euro 122 114 117 117 -
Average US Dallar forward contract rates - 169 - 170 -
Average Japanese Yen {orward coniract rates - 155 - 170 -
Average Euro forward contract rates - 13 - 133 -

The Company has US Dollar Japanese Yen and Eurg forward contracts wihich mature after the balance sheet date The farr value of these
contracts at the year end resulted in a profiit of £172,000 (2009 loss £5 415,000) (see note 21)

The Group classiies its forward contracts hedging forecasted transactions as cash flow hedges and states them at far value Further datails
are noted in the Treasury policies on page 14

Net assets and associated borrowings

The Group maintains foreign currency borrowings as a method of providing hedging aganst the currency transtation risk of the net assets
of its overseas subsidianes The level of hedging in place at the year end for the major currencies and ther relative base borrowing interest
rates were

Net assets of Currency Base borrowing

subsidiary borrowing nterest rate

Currency £000 £'000 %
Us Dollar 23,7580 20,654 025%
Japanesa Yen 14,836 13,632 025%
Euro 21,824 21,293 1 00%

The currency borrowings are short-lerm, with floating interest rates In order to minmise the cost of these borrowings, short-term currency
swaps are used on a rolling one-month cycle, so that at the year end the currency borrowings are not in existence but forward contracts
are In place to re-establish the currency borrowing shortly after the year end These currency swaps are noi reflected in the lable above

For the net asseis of the overseas subsidiaries not hedged, a 5% change in exchange rates will affect reserves by approxmately £400,000

Capital management

The Board's policy 1s 10 maintain a strong capital base and to maintain a balance between significant returns to shareholders with a
progressive dividend policy whilst ensuring the security of the Group supported by a sound capital positicn

23 OPERATING LEASES

The total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable cperating leases (all of which relate to land and buldings in subsidiaries} were

2010 2009
£'000 £000
Exping within one year 1,346 1.021
Expinng between two and five years 2,121 1174
Total future miwmum lease paymenis 3,467 2,195
Lease payments recognised as an expense duning the year were 2010 2009
£'000 £ 000
Total lease paymenis for the financial year 1,185 1,321
24 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments at the end of the year for which no prowision has been made in the financial statements, were
2010 2009
£'000 £'000

Authonsed and commitied 2,991 803
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The UK banking arrangements are subject to cross-guarantees between the Company and its UK subsidianes These accounts are subject

to a nght of set-off

26 SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The following are the subsidiary undertakings of Rerushaw pic, all of which are wholly-owned, unless otherwise stated, and all of which are
consohdated into the results of the Group The country of incorporation and registration 1s England and Wales unless otherwise stated
The country of Incorporation 15 also the country of operation The accounting year end for each subsidiary undertaking 1s 30th June unless

otherwise stlated
Company

Principal activities

Renishaw International Limited”

Renishaw (Ireland) Limited [Repusie of Irgland)”
Renishaw Holdings Limited

Renishaw Finance Limited”

Renishaw S A S (France)”

itp GmbH Germanmy™

Wotton Travel Limited

Renishaw Ciagnostics Limited {formeriy D3 Technoicgies
Lumited) (84 B%) (Scallang)

Renishaw Mayfield S A {Swazedand)
PuiseTeq Limited (75%)

Renishaw Metrology Systems Private Limited fnda}
(3151 March)

Overseas holding and nvestment company

Manufacture and sale of advanced precision metrology and inspection equipment
Holding and investment company

Group finance company

Service, distnbution, research and develcpment and manufacture of group products
Manufacture and sale of advanced precision metrolegy and inspection equipment
Travel agency

Design and sale of molecutar diagnostics and surface-enhanced Raman spectroscopy
products

Manufacture and sale of surgical robots for neurosurgical apphcations
Manufacture and sale of colls for the ennancement of mages from MRI scanners

Manufacture and sale of advanced precision metrology and inspection eguipment

Company - principal activity 1s the service and distnbution of group products

Renishaw Inc usa)

Renishaw KK (Japan)

Renishaw GmbH Garmany)

Renishaw S p A fay)

Rerishaw lbenca S AU Span)

Renishaw AG (Swizerand)

Renishaw {Hong Kong) Limited (Hong Kong)
Renishaw Latino Americana Ltda (Brazi) (31st December}
Renishaw Benelux BY (The Netherlanas)
Renishaw Oceania Pty Limied tausiraia)
Renishaw 8 r O (Czech Repubic)

* equity held by a subsidiary undertaking

Renishaw Sp z o 0 (Polanc)

Q00 Renishaw (Russia) (3151 Decernber)
Renishaw AB (Sweden)

Renishaw {Austna) GmbH (ausina)

Remnishaw (Korea) Limited (South Karea}
Renishaw {Canada} Limited (Canada}
Renishaw (israel) Limited (sraeh

Renishaw (Shanghai) Trading Company Limitad (The Peopie s Republic of Ghina)
(315t December)

Renishaw (Singapore) Pte Limited {Singapore)
Rerishaw (Tawan) ING (Tarwan)

During the year, Renishaw Finance and (Insurance) Limited ceased operation and was put into iquidation The Group also increased its
investment in Renishaw Diagnostics Limited from 75% to 84 8%

27 RELATED PARTIES

Duning the year, associates (RLS menina tehnika d 0 ©  Metrology Software Products Limited and Delcam pic) purchased goods and
services from the Group ic the value of £189,000 {2009 £ 168 000} and sold goods and services to the Group to the vatue of £2,328,000
(2009 £1,980,000) At 30th June 2010, assocrates owed £169,000 to the Group (2009 £132,000) Associates were owed £144,000 by the
Group (2009 £77,000) Dwidends of £80,000 were receved from associates dunng the year {2009 £80,000)

No bad debis were incurred dunng the year All transactions were on an arm s length basis

28 POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENT

In July 2010, the Group acguired a shareholding of 29% in Measurement Devices Limited, a company incorporated in Scotland and
operating In the metrology business The consideration was £2 3m An agreement provides for the further purchase of the balance of
majority shareholder shares over a penod of four years with the price payable based on the earnings of MDL dunng the relevant period
It ts also ntended that the sharas held by minonty shareholders (14%) will be agquired by a court-approved scheme of arrangement
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at 30th June 2010

Notes 2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 30 44,395 49,260
Investments in subsidiarnes 31 7,161 6034
Investments in associates 32 4,363 6814
55,919 62,108
Current assets
Deferred tax 33 3,118 7,808
Stock 34 19,073 18,288
Debtors 35 173,133 144 458
Cash at bank 17,630 10,044
212,954 180,699
Creditors
Amgounis faling due within one year 36 (50,093) (40,653)
Nat current assets
Cue within one year 75,430 45323
Cue after more than one year 87,421 94,723
162,861 140,048
Total assets less current habilities 218,780 202,154
Creditors
Amounts falling due after mere than one year 37 (4,425) (9.477)
Provisions for habilities 38 {416) 543)
Net assels excluding pension labiity 213,939 192,134
Pension liability 39 (23,879) {13,825)
Net assets including pension hability 190,060 178,309
Capital and reserves
Catleg up share capital 40 14,558 14,558
Share premum account 42 42
Currency reserve 41 172 (5.419)
Profit and foss account 42 175,288 169 124
Shareholders’ funds - eqm}y 190,060 178,308

These financial statements yere approved by the Board of directors on 28th July 2010 and were signed on its bebalf by
Sir David McMuriry

A C G Raberts / / 7
Drrectors . - / %

Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

for the year ended 30th June 2010 2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Profit/{loss} for the financial year 19,253 {6,547}
Dwvdends paid {2,912} (15.649)
Farr value of forward exchange contracts, net of deferred tax 5,587 {1,163}
Actuanal loss in ihe pension scheme, net of deferred tax (10,177) {7,401}
Increase/(decrease) in shareholders' funds 11,751 (30,760}
Shareholders' funds at 1st July 178,309 209,069

Shareholders’ funds at 30th June 190,060 178,309
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29 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The foliowsng accounting pohcies have been apphed consistently in
dealing with wems which are considered matenal in relation to the
financial statements of the Company

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
apphcable UK GAAP

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company
15 exemnpt from the requirement to present its own profit and
loss account

Under FRS 1 the Company 15 exempt from the requirement to
prepare a cash flow statement on thg grounds that a parent
undertaking includes the Company in its own publshed conschdated
financial siaterments

Advanlage has been taken of FRS B '‘Related party disclosures’
not 1o disclose transactions with subsidiaries on the basis that all
transactions were with members of the Group, 100% of whose
voling nghts were controlted

The Company has adopted FRS 29 Financial Instruments
Disclosures  which came into effect from 1st January 2007
However, the Company has taken the exemption avatable to parent
companies not to present financial instrument disclosures as the
Group financial statements contain disclosures that comply with

the standard

Investments

Investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings are stated
at cost less any provision for permanent impairment losses

Tangible assets and depreciation

Tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
Depreciation is provided to wnte off the cost of assets less ther
estimated residual value on a straight-ing basis over ther estimated
useful economic lives as follows -

Freehold buldings - 50 years
Plant and egupment — 3 to 10 years
Mator vehicles - 3 1o 4 years

No depreciation 1s provided on freehold land

Dwvidends

Dividends unpaid at the balance shee! date are only recogrnused as a
lability at that date to the exient thal they are approprately declared
and authgnsed and no longer at the discretien of the Company
Unpaid dwvidends that do not meet this critena are disclosed in the
Directors’ report

Research and development

Research and development expenditure 15 charged te profit and loss
account in the year in which 1t 1s incurred

Taxation

The charge for taxation 1§ based on the Company profit for the year
Deferred tax 1s recognised without discounting, in respect of all
trming differences between the treatment of certan items for taxation
and accountung purposes which have arnisen put not reversed by the
palance sheel date, except as otherwise required by FRS 19

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent thal it 1s regarded
as more likely than noi that they will be recovered

Long-term amount owed by a group undertaking

A balance owing to the Company by a subsidiary underiaking, which
1s expecied to be repaid over a number of years, has

been wtially valued at far value and 15 valued at amoritsed

cost thereafter

Employee benefits

The Company operated a contribuiory pension scheme of the
defined beneiit type up (0 5th Apri) 2007, after which this scheme
was closed for future accruals to existing members and was closed
to new members Since 5th Aprl 2007, the Company has operated
a defined contribution scheme, which 1s part of the same scheme
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The scheme 1s administered by trustees who are independent of the
Company finances

Pension scheme assets i the defined benefit scheme are measureo
using market value Pension schema habilities are measured using a
projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return
on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency o
the labilly The expected return on the scheme’s assets and the
interest on the scheme’s labiities ansing from the passage of time
are included in other finance ncome

The pension scheme’s surplus, to the extent that 1t 15 considered
recoverable, or deficit 15 recognised in {ull and presented on the face
of the batance sheet net of the related deferred tax

Accruals are made for holiday pay, based on a calculation of the
number of days holiday earned during the year, but not yet taken
and also for the annual performance bonus

Warranty on the sale of products

The Cornpany provides a warranty from the date of purchase on aft
its products This 1s typically for a twelve-month penod, although up
1o three years 1s given for a small number of products A warranty
provision 1§ Included in the accounts, which is calculated on the
basis of histoncal returns and nternal quahty reports

Dervative financial instruments

In accordance with its treasury poticy, the Company does not hold or
issue denvative financial instruments for frading purposes However,
denvatives that de not qualfy for hedge accounting are accounted
for as trading instruments

Denvatve financial instruments are recognised inmially at far value
The gain or koss on remeasurement to fair value 1s recognised
immediately in the profit andt loss account The fair value of forward
exchange contracts 1s therr quoted market price at the balance
sheet date

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost
comprises direct matenals and labour plus overheads apphcable to
the stage of manufacture reached

Foreign currencies

Transacticns In foreign currencies are translated at the rate of
exchange ruing at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and
habibhes denominated n foreign currencias at the balance sheet date
are translated into Sterling at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that
date Fareign exchange differences ansing on such translation are
recogrised in the profit and loss account

Going concemn

The Group's business actvities, iogether with the factors lLikaly (o
affect its future development, performance and position are set out In
the Financial review on pages 10 to 14, where also given are details
of the financial and hguidity positions  In addition, note 22 in the
financial statements includes the Group s objectives and policies for
managing its capital, details of s financial nstruments and hedging
actvities and its exposures to credit nsk and liquidity nsk

The Group has considerable financial rescurces al 1Its disposal and

the directors have considered the current financial projections As a
consequence, the directors believe that the Group s well placed to
manage s business nsks successfully

Aftar making enquines, the directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to
contnue i operational existence for the foreseeable future
Accordingly, they contnue to adopt the going concern basis in
prepanng the Annual report and accounts
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30 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Year ended 30th June 2010 Freehold Assets in the

land and Plant and Motor course of

buitdings equipment vehicles construction Total

£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 15t July 2009 35,743 72,534 2,275 480 111,032
Addibons - 729 165 546 1,440
Transfers - 460 - (460} -
Disposals - {631) {285) - (918)
At 30th June 2010 35,743 73,092 2,155 566 111,556
Depreciation
Al 1st July 2009 7,397 52,724 1,651 - 61,772
Charge for the year 815 5,209 251 - 6,275
Released on disposals - (629) (257) - (886)
At 30th June 2010 8,212 687,304 1,645 - 67,161

Net book value

At 30th June 2010 27,531 15,788 510 b66 44,395

At 30th June 2008 28 346 19,810 624 480 49,260

At 30th June 2010 properties with a net book value of £23,393,000 (2009 £23,815,000) were subject to a registered charge to secure ihe
UK defined benefit pension scherme labilites The trustees have the night to enforce the charge to recover any deficit if an insolvency event
occurs In relation to the Company before 30th September 2016 or if the Company has nct made good any deficit by midnight on

30th September 2016

Addilions 10 assels in the course of construction of £546,000 (2009 £903,000) compnse £85,000 (2009 £136,000) for freehold tand and
buildings and £451 000 (2009 £767 000) for plant and eguipment

31 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

2010 2009
Movemenis during the year wera £'000 £000
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,034 5,128
Invastments made dunng the year 1,127 152
Transfer from investments in associales - 754
Baiance at the end of the year 7,161 6,034
A list of subsidiary undertakings is shown in note 26
32 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

2010 2009
Movernents during the year were £'000 £°000
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,814 6,714
Investments made during the year - 854
Impawrment of Investment (2,451) -
Transfer to investmenis in subsidianes - (754)
Balance at the end of the year 4,363 6,814

The imparment of investment 1s In respect of the revaluation of the Investment in Delcam plc, based on its share price of £2 40 at 30th
June 2010

33 DEFERRED TAX

2010 2009
Movements during the year were £'000 £'000
Batance at the beginruing of the year 7,909 974
Movernenis during the year (4,791) 6,935

Balance at the end of the year 3,118 7,908




33 DEFERRED TAX CONTINUED

2010 2008
The deferred 1ax asset 1s represented by £'000 £000
Difference between accumulated deprecialion and capital allowances {282) N3
QOther timing differences 3,400 6,996

3,118 7,909
Deferred tax on pension scheme lrability 9,286 5,376
Balance at the end of the year 12,404 13,285

2010 2008
The movements in the delerred iax balance were £'000 £ 000
Balance at the beginning of the year 13,285 3,915
Amount (charged)/credited to the Profit and loss account (2,618) 6,483
Amount reflected through the Statement of iolal recognised gains and losses 1,737 2,887
Balance at the end of the year 12,404 13,285
34 STOCK

2010 2009
An analysis of stock at the end of the year was £'000 £'000
Raw matenals 8,695 8,511
Work In progress 6,613 5,575
Firushed goods 3,765 4 202
Balance at the end of the year 19,073 18,288
35 DEBTORS

2010 2009
An analysis of debtors at the end of the year was £'000 £'000
Debtors due within one year
Trade debtors 6,667 5,632
Amounts owed by group undertakings 76,200 48,719
Amounts cwed by associated underiakings 132 132
Corporation tax 428 599
Prepayments and other recewvables 2,670 1,853
Fair value of forward exchange conlracts 1,158 709

87,255 57 644

Debtors due after more than one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings 81,876 82,794
Far value of forward exchange contracts 4,002 4,020
Balance at the end of the year 173,133 144,458

Amounts owed by group undertakings due after more than one year at 30th June 2010 are shown at ther amaortised cost, calculated using the
efiectve interest method The balance at 30th June 2010 of £81,876,000 (2008 £82,794,000) 1s based on an onginal amount of £95,026,000

(2009 £102,029,000)

36 CREDITORS
Amounts faling due within one year

2010 2009
An analysis of creditors due within one year at the end of the year was £'000 £'000
Trade creditors 6,844 4,082
Amounts owed to group undertakings 33,117 28 156
Amounts owed to associated undertakings 89 52
Other taxes and social secunty 1,402 1,110
Other creditors 5,295 1,630
Far value of forward exchange contracts 3,346 5,623
Balance at the end of the year 50,093 40,653
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37 CREDITORS
Amounts fallitng due after more than one year !

2010 2009
An analysis of creanors gue after more than one year was £'000 £000
Beferred consideration 2,850 2 850
Fair vafue of {orward exchange contracts 1,575 6,627
Tatal creditors due after more than one year 4,425 9,477

The deferred consideration s in respect of the investment in Rerushaw Diagnostics Limited  which (s payable over a five-year penod from the
date of the iniial investment

38 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Warranty provision

2010 2009
Movaemenis during the year were £'000 £'000
Balance at the beginning of the year 543 686
Utised durng the year {619) (647)
Created In the year 492 504

(127 (143}
Batance at the end of the year 416 543

The warranty provision has been calculated on the basis of histornical return-in-warranty information and cther qualty reports It s expected
that most of this expenditure will De incurred N the next financial year and all expenditure will be incurred within three years of the balance
sheel date

39 PENSION SCHEME

The Company operated a defined benelt pension scheme, which in Apnl 2007, ceased any future accrual for current members and was closed
lo new members Employees of the Company are now covered by a defined contribution scheme

The total pension cost of the Company for the year was £3,422,000 (2008 £4,262 000), of which £125,000 (2009 £140 000) related

1o drectors

The latest fult actuanal valuation of the scheme was carmed out at Septernber 2006 and updated to 30th June 2010 onan FRS 17 basis by a
quallied independent aciuary The major assurnptions used by the actuary for the scheme were

30th June 2010 30th Juna 2008 30th June 2008

Rate of increase in pension payments 33% 3 3% 3 8%
Discount rate 53% 6 2% 62%
inflation rate 34% 34% 41%
Expecied return on equities 81% 8 3% 91%
Retrement age 64 64 64

The mertalty assumption adopted for 2010 15 PCAQQ, year of bith medium cohort {2009 short cohort) which reflects the increasing
ie expectancy

The assets and lhabilities in the scheme were

30th June % of 30thJune 9% of 30th June %of 30thJune %of 30thJure %ol

2010 total 2009 total 2008 total 2007 total 2006 totat
£'000 assets £'000 assets £'000 assets E'QO0 assels £ 000 assets
Market value of assets
Equities 78,248 100 65,550 99 79,143 98 84,306 a8 67,722 it}
Bonds and cash 156 [s] 441 i 1,243 2 1,740 2 565 1
78,404 100 65,991 100 80,386 100 86,646 100 68,287 100
Aciuanal value of habiliies (111,569) {85 192) {90,889) {79,796) {86,119)
Deficnt n the scheme (33,165) {19,201) (10 503} 6,850 (17,832)
Deferred tax thereon 9,286 5,376 2941 {1,920} 5,350
Pension {iabiity)/asset (23,879) {13.825) {7 562) 4,930 (12,482)




39 PENSION SCHEME CONTINUED

The history of expenence gains and losses 1s Year ended Year ended Vear ended Year endea Year ended
30th June 30th June 30th June 30th June 30th June
2010 2009 2008 2007 2008
Difference between the expected and actual
return on scheme assets
amount (£'000) 9,357 (20,244) (12,651} 6.738 6,288
percentage of scheme assets 12% (31%) {16%)} 8% 9%
Expenence gams and losses on scheme hatubties
amount {£'000) - {3,954) - {2,751} (483)
percentage of present value of scheme liabililies - {5%) - 3%} {1%)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of total
recognised gains and losses
amount (€ 000Q) (14,135) (10,279} (19 842) 3,444 (866)
percentage of present value of scheme labilities {13%) (12%) {22%) 4% (1%}
2010 2009
The movemnents In the scheme were £'000 £ 000
Deficit 1n scheme at tst July {19,201) {10.503)
Other finance income 171 1,581
Actuanal loss {14,135) {10 279}
Deficit in scheme at 30th June (33,165) {19,201)
2010 2008
The income racogrised in the Profit and loss account was £'000 £'000
Expected return on pension scheme's assets 5,381 7175
Interest on pension schema's habilities (5,210) {5 594}
Total income recagnised in the Profit and loss account 171 1,581
2010 2009
The analysis of the amount recognised in the Statement of total recogrised gans and losses was £'000 £000
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets 9,357 {20,244)
Experience loss ansing on scheme liabihlies - (3,954)
Changes n financia! assumptions (23,492) 13,919
Total recognised in the Statement of total recognised gains and losses {14,135} (10.279)
40 SHARE CAPITAL 2010 2009
£000 £'000
Allotted, called-up ang fully pad
72 788 543 ordinary shares of 20p each 14,558 14,558

The ordinary shares are the only class of share in the Company Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to vote at general meetngs of the
Company and receive dvdends as declared The Articles of Association of the Company do not contain any restrictons on the transfer of

shares nor on voling nghts
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54 Notes to the Company financial statements continued

41 CURRENCY RESERVE

The unreahised currency gan/{loss) on foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding at the year end has been recogrused net of deferred tax

2010 2009
Movements dunng the year were £'000 £ 000
Balance at the beginning of the year {5,415) (4,252}
Amounts recycled into the Profit and loss account In the year 3,538 1,395
Revaluatons during the year 2,049 (2,558)
Balance at the end of the year 172 {5415)
42 PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
2010 2009
Movements in the Profit and loss account duning Lhe year were £000 £'000
Balance at the beginning of the year 169,124 198 721
Profit/(loss) for the year 19,253 6 547)
Dwidends pad in ihe year {2,912} (15 649)
Actuaral loss In the pension scheme {14,135} {10,279)
Deferred tax therecn 3,958 2,878
{10,177) (7,401)
Balance at the end of the year 175,288 169,124

The profit and loss account reserve in the Company of £175,288,000 (2009 £169,124,000) includes £101,294,000 (2008 £95,175,000)
whichs currently non-distnbutable

43 RELATED PARTIES

Dunng the year, related pariies {ihese being the Group's associates (see note 11), Renishaw Diagnostics Limited and PulseTeq Limited)
purchased goods and services from the Company to the value of £465 000 (2008 £168,000) and scld goods and services to the Company
to the value of £926 000 (2009 £1,352,0CC)

At 30th June 2010 related parties owed £698,000 (2008 £325,000) to the Company Related parties were owed £89,000 (2009 £52,000)
by the Company Dvidends of £80,000 were recewved from related parties dunng the year {2009 £80,000)

All transactions were on an arm s length hasis There were no bad debts wntten off duning the year (2009 Cnil}

44 PERSONNEL EXPENSES

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
The aggregaie payroll costs for the year were
Wages and salarnies 41,021 43 336
Compuisory social security contributions 4,347 4,529
Contnbutions 1o pension scheme 3,422 4,262
Redundancy costs - 2,934
Toial payroll costs 48,780 55,061
The average number of persons employed by the Company dunng the year was Number Number
1,209 1,410
45 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments at the end of the year for which no prowision has been made in the financial statements, were
2010 2008
£'000 £000

Authonsed and commitied 1,281 221




Notice of meeting

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION If you are in any doubt as to the action
you should take, you are recommended immediately to seek
your own personal financial advice from your stockbroker, bank
manager, solicitor, accountant or other independent financial
adviser authorised under the Financial Services and Markets
Act 2000

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your shares

tn Rermishaw plc, you should pass this document and the
accompanying form of proxy without delay to the stockbroker,
bank or other person who arranged the sale or transfer so
they can pass these documents to the person who now holds
the shares

Notice is hereby given that the 37th annual general meeting of the
Company will be held al New Mills Wotton under Edge, Gloucestershire
G1.12 8JR on Thursday 14th October 2010 at noon You will be asked

to consider and, 1If thoughi fil, pass the resclutions below Resolutions 13
and 14 will be proposed as special reselutions This means that for each
of these resolutions to be passed, at least three quarters of the votes cast
must be in favour of the resolution Al other resolutions will be proposed
as orchinary resolulions This means that for each of these raselutions to
be passed more than hall of the vales casl must be in favour of

the resalution

Ordinary resolutions

1 Toreceive and adopt the reports of the directors and auditors and the
financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2010,

2 Todeclare a iinal dvidend for the year ended 30th June 2010,

3 Tore elect as a drector, S David MehMurtry, a direclor retinng
voluntanly and who being eligible, offers himself for re-election

4 To e elect as director John Deer a dractor retinng voluntanly and
who being elgible, offers hnmself for re election,

5 Tore elect as director Ban Taylor, a director retinng voluntarily and
who, being eligible, offers himsell for re-election

6 Tore elect as director Allen Roberts, a direclor retinng voluntarly and
who being eligihle, offers himsell for re elechion

7 Tore elect as a drector Geolf McFarland a dwector retinng voluntanly
and who, heing eligible, offers imsell for re election

& Tore elect as a drector Ferry Garthwaile a director rebinng voluntanly
and who, being ebgible, offers himself for re election,

9 Tore elect as a drector David Snowden, a director retinng voluntarnty
and who being elgible oflers humseli for re election,

10 To ro olect as a director Bill Whiteley, a director retinng veluntanly and
who, being eligible, offers hirnsell for re election,

11 To approve the Dwectors Remuneration Report for the year anded
30th June 2010 contained in the Annual Reper 2010

12 To re appoint KPMG Audit Pic as auditor of the Company, to hold
office from the conclusion of the meeting to the coenclusion of the
next meeling al which accounts ase lad betore the meeding, and 1o
authonse the dveclors 1o determine the remuneration of the auditor,

Special resolutions
13 To consider and, if thoughit fit, to pass the following resolubion

That the Company be and 15 hereby uncondiionally authonsed for the
purposes of section 701 of the Companies Act 2006 {ihe "2006 Act™)
to make ene or more market purchases {within the meaning of section
6593(4) of the 2006 Act) of ordinary shares of 20p each in the capital of
the Company ("orchinary shares”) provided that

i} the maxmum number ol ordinary shares hereby authonsed 1o be
purchased 1s 7 278,854,

(i} the maximum price that may be pad for an ordinary share is
an amount equal to the tugher of (i} 105% of the average of the
muddle market quotations for an ordinary share {as derwved from
the London Stock Exchange Dady Official List) for the 5 business
days /mmedately preceding the day on which the orchinary share s
purchased and (1) the amount stipulated by Aricle 5(1) of the Buy-
Back and Stabilisation Regutation 2003,

{w} the minimum price which may be pad for an ordinary share shall
be 20p

{w) the authonty hereby conferred shall expire at 1he earber of (he
conclusion of the annual general meeling Lo be held i 2011 and

[
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315t December 20171 unless such authonty 1s renewed pnor to such
tme, and

{v} the Company may make a contract 10 purchase ordinary shares
under the authorty hereby conferred prsor 10 the expiry of such
authonly which contract will or may be executed wholly or partly
after the expiralion of such authonty and may make a purchase of
orclinary shares pursuant 1o such contract

14 To consider and, if thought fit, lo pass the following resolution

That the Aricles of Association produced to the meeting and initialled
by the Chauman of the meeung for the purpose of Identification be
adopted as the Articles of Assocaton of the Company In substitution
for, and 1o the exclusian of, the existing Aricles of Association
{including those provisions of the Company's Memorandum of
Associalion which, by virtue of section 28 Companies Act 2006, are
ireated as provisions of the Compary s Articles of Association)

By order of the Board

NGRS TQJ%_

N Tang New Milis

Secretary Wotton-under Edge
Gloucestershire

20th August 2010 GL12 8JR

NOTES

1 A form of proxy 15 provided with this Notice for members A member
1s entitled to appomt one or more proxies to exercise all or any of the
member § nghts 1o attend and to speak and vote at the meeting A
member may appoint more than one proxy N relation to the meeting
provided that each proxy (s appointed to exercise the rights attached
10 a different share or shares held by thal member If a member wishes
o appont more than one proxy and so requires addiional proxy forms,
the member should contact Equinit Limited on 087 1 384 2169 Calls
1o this number cost 8p per minute frem a BT fandine, other providers
costs may vary Lines are open irom 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday to
Friciay Overseas shareholders should call +44 121 415 7047

2 A proxy need not be a member of the Company but must attend the

meeting for the mermber § vote 10 be counted A proxy forrm which
may be used to make such appomntment and give proxy instructions
accompanes this notice

To be vahd any proxy form or other instrument appointing a proxy must
be recewved by post or {dunng normal business hours only} by hand at
Equiniti Ltmited, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex,
BNS9 G6ZL or the Proxy appontment must be lodged using ithe CREST
Proxy Voung Service, in accordance with Note 7 below, no later than
48 hours (excluding non working days} before the ime apponted for
holding the meeting Amended instructions must also be recewved by
the Company's registrar s by the deading for rece:pt of proxy forms

The return of a completed proxy form or other such nstrument will not
prevent a member from attending the meeting and voing in person d
he/fshe wishes to do 50

5 Pursuant to Regulation 41{1}) of the Uncertificated Securities

Regulations 2001 (as amended) and for the purposes of section 3608
Companies Aci 2008, the Company has specified that (o be enutled

to attend and vote at the meetng or any adjournment (and for the
purpose of the determinaton by the Company of the votes they may
cast), members musl be registered in the Register of Members of

the Company as at 6pm on 12th October 2010 or for any adjourned
meeting, 48 hours before the ime appointed for holding the adjicurmned
meetng Changes to the Register of Members after the relevant
deadiine shall be disregarded in deterrmining the nghts of any persen to
atiend and vole at the meeting

6 CREST members who wish to appont a proxy or proxies through
the CREST e'ectronic proxy appoiniment senice may do so by using
the procedures descriped in the CREST Manual CREST Personal
Members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST
members wha have apponted a voting service provider(s}, should refer
to thewr CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able o
take the appropriate action on therr behalf
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7 inorder for a proxy appontment or insiruction made using the CREST
service {0 be vahd, the appropnate CREST message (a “CREST
Proxy Instruction™ must be progerly authenticated in accordance with
Eurociear specifications ang must contain the information requred 1or
such nstructions, as described in the CREST Manuat The message,
regardless of whethar f constitules the appointment of a proxy of an
arnendment 1o the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy
must, in order to be vald, be transmitied so as ic be recewved by
the issuer s agent (ID RA19) by the latest ume(s) for receipt of proxy
appointments spectfied n the notice of meeting For this purpose
the urne of receipt will be iaken to be the tme (as determined by
the tmestamp appiied io the message by the CREST Applications
Haost) from which the issuer s agent Is able to retneve the message
by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST  After this
tme any change of instructions to proxies appointed through CREST
should be commurnicated 1o the appointee through other means

8 CREST membars and, where apphcable, thew CREST sponsors or
voting service providers should nole that Euroclear does not make
avalable special procedures in CREST for any particular messages
Norrnat systern timings and hmitations wilt therefore apply in relation
to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions 1 1s the responsitility of
the CREST member concemed to take (or if the CREST member 1s
a CREST parsonal member or sponsored member or has appointed
a voling service provider(s) 1o procure that his CREST sponsor or
voling service provider(s) lake(s)) such action as shall be necessary to
engure that a message 18 ransmitted by means of the CREST system
Dy any particular ime In this connection CREST members and,
where applicable, thesr CREST sponsors or voling sefvice providers
are referred n paricular, to those sections of the CREST Manual
concerning prachical imitations of the CREST system and tirmings The
CREST Manual can be reviewed at www ecroclear com/CREST

9 The Company may treal as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the
crcumstances set out in Regulation 35(5){a) of the Uncerulicaled
Secuniies Regulations 2001

10 You may not use any electromic address provided enther in this Notice
ol Meeting or any related documents (iIncluding the Form of Proxy} to
cornmunicate with the Company for any purposes other than those
expressly siated

1

—_

Any corporation which 1s a2 member can appont one or more
corporate representatves who may exercise on its behalf all of its
powers as a member provided that (f it 15 appointing more than
one corporale represeniative, it dees not do so in relation 1o the
samce shares

12 Any person receming a copy of this nolice as a person nominated by
a member under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy
infosmabion aghts (a “Norminated Person®) should note the prowisions
n his notice concerning the appointment of a proxy or proxies 1o
atlend the meeting in place of a member do not apply to 8 Nominated
Person as only shareholkders have the nght to appoint a proxy
However a Nominaled Person may under an agreement between
tim/her and the member by whom he/she was nominated, have a
nght to be apponied {or t0 have someone else appointed) as a proxy
for the Annual General Meeting If a Nominated Person has ne such
proxy appointment nght or does not wish 1o exercise i, he/she may,
under any such agreement, have a night to give instructions o the
member as to the exercise of voling nghis

13 Under section 527 of the Companses Act 2006 members meeting the
thrashold requirerments set out 1in thal section have the nght to require
the Cormpany to publish on a websile a staterment setting out any
matter relating to () 1he audit of the Company s accounts including
the auclitor s report and the conduct of the audn) that are to be tad
betore the meeting, or (1) any crcumslance conngcted with an auditor
of the Company ceasing to hoid ofiice since the previous meeting
al which annual accounts and reports weare laid in accordance with
sechon 437 of the Companies Aci 2006 The Company may not
require the members requesting any such websile pubhcation 10 pay
its expenses in complying with sections 527 or 528 of the Companies
Act 2006 Where the Company 1S required Lo place a stalement on
a website under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, it must
iorward the statement to the Company s auditor not later than the ume
when it makes the stalemeni available on the website The business
which may be dealt with at the Annual General Meeling ncludes any
staternent that the Company has been required under section 527 of
the Companies Act 2006 o publish on a websiie

14 Any member atiending the meeting has the nght to ask questions The
Company muss cause 10 be answered any such question relaing to
the business being deall with a1 the meeting but no such answer need
pe given i {a) to do so would nieriere unduly with the preparauon for

the meeting or involve the disclosure of confidental information, (b) the
answer has already been given on a website in the form of an angwer
10 a question, or [¢) it Is undesirable in the interests of the Company or
the good order of the meeting that the questien be answered

15 A copy of this notice, and other nformation required by s311A of the
Companies Act 2006, can be found in the copy of the Annual report
and accounts 2010 al www renishaw com

16 Under section 338 and section 3384 of the Companies Act 2006,
members meeling ihe threshold requirements in those sections have
the nght to require the Company () to give, 1o members of the Company
entitied to receve notice of the meeting notice of a resolution which
may properly be moved and 1s intended to be moved at the meeting
anc/or {i} to include in the business to be dealt with at the meeting
any matter {other than a proposed resolution) which may be properly
inclucied in the business A resolution may properly be moved of a
matter may properly be included in the business unless (a) (in the case
of a resolution only) It would, if passed, be ineffective (whether by reascn
of Incongistency with any enactment or the Company s consttulion
or ctherwise), (D) it 1s defamatory of any person, or (c) it 1s frivolous or
vexatious Such a request may be in hard copy form or in electronic
form, must dentify the resolution of which notice is fo be given or the
matter 1o be included in the business, must be authonsed by the person
or persons making it, must be receved by the Company not later than
Wednesday 15t September 2010, being the date 6 clear weeks before
the meeting, and (in the case of a matter to be ncluded In the business
only) must be accompanied by a statement setting out the grounds for
the request

17 As at 19th August 2010 (being the last business day prior 1o the
publicaton of this Netice) the Company § issued share capital consists
of 72,788,543 orcinary shares carrying ong voie each Therefore,
the 1otal voling nghts in the Company as at 19th August 2010 are
72,788,543 There are no other classes of shares or any shares held 0
trgasury

18 Copses of the following documents are available for wspection al the
regisiered office of the Company duning normal business hours (8 00am
4 15pm, excluding weekends and public holdays)

(a) service contracts of the executive drreclors,
{b} letters of appointment of the non-executive directors and
{c) a copy of the proposed new articles of association of the Company

The new articles of association will also be avallable for Inspection at the
offices of Norton Rose LLP, 3 Morg LLondon Rverside, London SE1 2AQ
dunng normal business hours (8 00am unil 5 30pm, excluding weekends
and publc holidays})

All documents will be available for nspecton at the above locations from the
date of this notica until the conclusion of the AGM, and will also be avalable
for nspection at the place of the AGM from 15 minutes before it s held untl
Its conclusion

APPENDIX 1

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

Resolution 1 - Reports of Directors and Financial statements

The Dwrectors must present the report of the Drectors and the auditors and
he accounts of the Company {or the year ended 30th June 2010 10 the
shareholders al the AGM

Resolution 2 - Final dmdend

Tha Directors recommend thal a final dividend of 13 8p per share be paid to
each shareholder on the register of members as at the clese of business on
the day 48 hours pnor to the payment of such dvidend

Rasolutions 3 to 10 inclusve - Re election of drectors

In the spint of best praciice, and in accardance with the provisions of
the UK Corporate Governance Code (formerly the Combined Code), all
Directors apart from Joe McGeenan will relire and, being ebgible, ofier
themsalves for re election at the AGM  Joe McGeehan will retire from the
board with effect from the AGM Biographical detads of the directors are
shown on pages 4 and 5

Resolution 11 - Remuneration report

Listed companigs are required to prepare a Directors’ remuneration report
and put a resolution lo approve the report to the shareholders at the AGM
The Directors remuneration report 1S set out on page 23




Resolutron 12 - Re appointment and remuneration of auditors

The Caompany 15 required 1o appoint auditors at each general meeting at
which accounts are laid before shareholders, to hold office untl the end of
the next such meeting KPMG Audit Plc has expressed its wilingness ic
continue as auditors and resolution 12 proposes its re appontiment as the
Company s auditors and also seeks authonty for the Directors to decide
the auditors remuneration

Resolution 13 - Market purghase of own shares by the Company

I hus resolution renews the previous authonly granted on 15th October
2009 which exprres an the date of the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting The resolution authonses the Company to make market
purchases of s own ordinary shares The authonty hmits the number of
shares thal could be purchased to a maximum of 7,278,854 (representing
10% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company) and sets minimum

and maxirmum prices This authonty will expire at the conclusion of the
Company 5 nexi AGM

The Directors have no present intention of exercising the authonty te
purchase the Company’s ordinary sharas bul will kesp the matter under
review taking nto account market condions, the cash reserves of the
Company the Company s share price appropriate geanng levels other
invastment opporturities and the overall financial position of the Company
The authonty will be exercised only f to do so would te likely to promote
the success of the Company for the banelit of its shargholders as a whole

Any purchases of ordinary shares would most likely be by means of
market purchasas through the London Stock Exchange The authority will
only be valid until the conclusion of the Company s next AGM or f earlier,
18 months from the date of this resolution

Resolution 14 - Adoption of new articles of association

It 1s proposed 0 resolution 14 to adopt new articles of association in order
1o update the Company s current articles of association, pnmarty 10 take
account of the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and the Companes
{Sharenolders Righis) Regulations 2009

The pnnopal changes are summansed iy Appendix 2 of this notice A
copy of the proposed new Arlicles of Association will be available for
mspection at the Company s registered office and at the offices of Norton
Rose LLP 3 More London Riverside, London SE1 2AQ during normal
business hours {8 00am untl 5 30pm, excluding weekends and public
halidays} untit the conclusion of the AGM

APPENDIX 2

EXPLANATORY NOTES OF PRINCIPAL CHANGES TO THE
COMPANY'S ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Set out below 1s a summary of the principal changes i the New Articles
References o article numbers are those used in the New Asticles (except
where reference 1s made to a provision which has been deleled)

1 The Company s objects

The provisions regutating the operations of the Company were until ist
October 2008 set out 1n the Company's memorandwum and arlicles of
assocsation

The Compames Act 2006 (CA 2006} significantly reduces the
censtituticnal significance of a company § memorandum The CA 2006
provides ihat the memorandum will record only the names of subscnbers
ango the number ol shares each subscriber has agreed Lo take n the
company Under the CA 2006 the maority of the previous provisions of
the memorandum maost notably the objects clause, are deemed o De
part of the Company s articles of association with effect from

1st October 2009

Further, the CGA 2006 stales that, unless a company s articles provide
otherwise a company s obyjects are unrestricied This abohshes the need
ior compares to have objects clauses For this reason the Company s
proposing to remove s objects clause (logether with all other provisions
of s memorandum which, by vitue of the CA 2006 are treated as
formung part of the Cormpany s articles of assocation as of 1st October
2005} This will be achieved by the adoption of New Arbicles which contain
no such provisions other ihan a statement regarding the mited habihty

of shareholders

2 - Arucles whuch duphicate statulory provisions

Prowisions in the Current Artictes which replicate provisions contaned
inthe CA 2006 are in the main to be removed N the New Articlas or
amancied 10 bring them into kne with the CA 2006

3 Change of name {Article 3)

Under the Companies Act 1985 (CA 1985}, a company could onty change
s name by special resolution  Under the CA 2006 a company will be
able to change its name by other means provided for by s artictes  To
take advantage of this prowtsion, the New Articles enable the directors to
pass a resolution to change the Company s name

4 - Authonsed share capital and urissued shares (former Aricle 5)

The CA 2006 removes the concept of authonsed share capital As with
the objecis clause (see paragraph 1}, the statement of authonsed share
capital previousty contained in a cormpany’s memorandum of association
1s deemed with effect from 1st October 2009 to be a provision of the
company s articles of association (and takes effect as setting out the
maximum number of shares that may be aliotted by the company) The
adoption of the New Articles will have the effect of removing this provision

Directors will still be hmited as to the number of shares they can at any time
allot because an allotment authonty continues 1o be required under the CA
2006, save in respect of employee share schemes

5 Redeemable shares {Arucle 7)

Under the CA 1985, I a company wished to 1ssue redeemable shares,

it had to include i its articles the terms and manner of redemption The
ChA 2008 enabies drectors to determine such matters nstead provided
they are so authonsed by the articles The New Articles contan such an
authonsation The Company has no plans to 1ssue redeemable shares, but
it did so the drectors would need shareholders authorly 10 1ISSug new
shares in the usual way

6 Share warrants {Article 8)

The New Articles permit the directors to 1ssue share warrants in respect of
any fully paid shares The directors have no current intention of exercising
this authorty

7 - Shares in uncertificated form {Article 11)

The Uncertificated Secunties Regulattons 2001 (the Regulations) replaced
the Uncentificated Securties Regulations 1995, which estabhshed he legal
framawork for the CREST settiement system The Regulations allow shares
In companies to bessued, held, registered, converted to, transferred

or otherwise dealt with in uncertificated form and allow shares 1o be
converled from uncertificated form to certificated form in accordance with
the Regulations and practices instituted by the operator of the relevant
system The fact that the Current Articles do not conlain prowisions in
relauon to uncertificated shares does not prevent the Company s shares
being dealt with through CREST pursuant to the Regulations However
the New Articles conlain specific provisions in this regard intended to
roflect the legislation descnbed above and 1o clanfy how certificated and
uncertificated shares may be dealt with in certain circumnstances

8 Suspension of regsiration of share transfers (former Arlicle 35)

The Current Articles permit the directors to suspend the registration of
transters for up to 30 days in any year, reflecting a provision of the CA
1985 Under the CA 2006 share transfers must ba regrstered as soon as
prachcable Accordingly, the provision which allowed the Company to
suspend the registration of transfers has been removed in the New Articles

9 Authonty to purchase own shares, consolidate and sub-dwvide shares,
and reduce share capital (former Articles 42, 44 and 45)

Under the CA 1985, a company required specific enabling provisions in its
articles 1o purchase iis own shares, to consolidate or sub dvide its shares
and to reduce s share capital or other undistnbusable reserves as well as
shareholder authonty to undertake the relevant acticn The Current Articles
include these enabling provisions Under the CA 2006 a company will only
require shareholder authonty to do any of these things and it will no longer
be necessary for articles to contain enabling provisions  Accordingly, tha
relevant enabling prowisions have been removed i the New Ariicles

10 Notice of general meetings {former Aricle 52}

Under the CA 2006 as amended by the Shareholders Rights Regulations
general meetings cannot be held on shorter notice than the statutory
mirumum (21 days or 14 days) penod The New Anicles therefore iemove
{his prowsion

11 Postponement of meetings (Aricle 52)

The New Acdticles include provisions (o allow ihe directors to

postpone a general meating if they consider that it would be unpractical
or unreasonable 10 hold such meeting on ihe intended date, tme
ang/or place
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12 - Special Business {former Article 54)

Ag the Listing Rutes of the UK Listing Authority ne fonger refer o a
distinction between ordinary business and special business, we do noi
consider ¢ 10 be appropriate that the Current Articles continue to make
such a distinction in addiion to the distinchon between ordinary and
special rescluiions  Ariicle 54 in the Cusrent Articles regarding special
business has therafore been removed in the New Articles

$3  Adjournments for lack of quorum {Article 54)

Under the CA 2006 as amended by the Shargholders Rights Regulations,
qoneral meetings adjourned for lack of quorum must be held at least 10
clear days alfter the onginal meeting The New Articles reflect

this requirement

14 Electroric conduct of meetings (Article 60)

Amendments made to the CA 2006 by the Shareholders Rights
Regulations specifically provide for the holding and conducting of
elactronic meetings The Current Articles have been amended to reflect
more closely the relevant provisions

15 - Charman s casting vole (Former Article 68}

The New Arlcles rernove the provision giving the chairman a casting vote
in the evenl of an equalty of votes as this 1s no longer permitted under the
CA 2008

16 Voting by proxies on a show of hands {Article 70)

Under the CA 2006 as arnended by the Sharcholders Rights Regutations,
each proxy appointed by a member has one vote on a show of hands
unless the proxy 1s appoinied by more than one member in which case
the proxy has one vote for and one vote agamst i the proxy has been
instrucled by one or more members 1o vote for the resolution and by one
or more members o vote against the resolution The New Aructes reflect
these changes and conlan a prowision clanfying how the provision of the
CA 2006 gnng 2 proxy a second vole on a show of hands shoutd apply
to discretionary authonities

17 Timing for submission of proxy appoiniments (Aricle 72}

Article 72 has been amended to permit the directors 1o specify, in a notice
of meeting that in determining the time for delivery of proxy appointments,
ng acceunt shall be taken of non working days This brings the provisions
relating to teming for proxy appointments into line with the provisions of
Arlicle 145 (see paragraph 26} regarding determining which persons may
attend and vole at a general meeting

18 Valdity of votes by proxies and corporata representatives {Article 75)

Under the CA 2006 as amended by the Shareholders Rights Regulations,
proxies have an gbhgation 1o vote n accordance with the instructions
gwven o them by the member appeiniing them The New Artictes contain
a provision stating that the Company i1s not required to enquire whether

a proxy or corporate representalwve has voted in accordance with
nstructions given 1o him and that votes cast by a proxy or corporate
representative will be valid even iIf he has not voted in accordance with
these instructions

The New Articles also provide that any objection to the quatfication of a
person voling must be made at the meetng at which the vote objecied
to 15 tenclored or at the time any poll 1s taken and that the charman’s
decision is final and binding The New Articles requirg a member to
provide reasonable evidence of his and his proxy s identsty and also
specify what 2 member must provide by way of ewdence if a proxy is
appoinied by a person acling in behalf of a member

19 Number of Directors {(Arlicle 76)

Insitutional investor guidelnes recommend that companies include a
Irmit on the number of drectors that may be on the Board at a particular
ume The New Artictes include a imit of iifteen direciors as the maximum
number of drectors that rmay be on the Company s Board

20 Vacation of Office by Duactors (Avtcle 86)

The Current Articles specify the arcumstances in which a duecior must
vacale olfice The New Articles update these provisions to reflect the
approach laken on mental and physical Incapaciy in the model articles for
public companies produced by the Department for Business, Innovation
and Skills

21 No shareholding qualification for Directors {former Aricle 87)

Thera 15 no fonger any requirement for a company's articles to contan

a negative statement If the drectors do not need to own shares in the
company This negative statement {contaned i the Current Arlicles) has
therefore been removad from the New Articles

22 Drreciors interests (Articles 120-127)

The articles dealing with directors confiicts of interest have been
amended in ing with market practice Under the New Arucles cerain
conflicts of Interest do not need to be auihonsed, for example an interest
as a director of a group company

Generally the nalure and extent of any conflict of interest must be
disclosed before it can be authonsed or before it 15 permitted without
beng authonsed but the New Articles prowide for some Situabons in
which disclosure 15 not required where knowledge can be presumed and
disclosure 1s uniikely 1o be necessary The New Articles also allow the
board tc exercise voting nghts in group companies without restncion,

e g, 50 as {0 appoint a duector to the board of a group company without
this counting as a confict requinng authornsation

23 Execution of documents (Article 131}

The New Articles contain provisions in relation to the Company s abiity
to execute documents and, in particular, reflect the abiity of companies
{under the CA 2006} to exetute deeds by the signature of a single
Director, provided that signature 1s appropnalely wilnessed

24 Use of seals (former Article 136)

Undler the CA 1985 a company required authonty in s articles to have
an official seal for use abroad Under the CA 20086, such authonty 1s no
longer requred Accordingly, the relevant authonsation has been removed
in the New Articles

25 Scrip dvidends (Arlicle 142)

The New Articles permit the directors, with the prior authonty of an
ordinary resolution, to offer sharehaolders the nght to elecl 1o receve
shares instead of any dvidend The directors have no current intention of
exercising this authonty

26 - Record date for night to attend and votg at meetings (Article 145)

The New Articles include a new provision, net i the Current Arlicles,
dealing with the method for deterrmining which persons are allowed to
attend or vote at a general meeting of the Company and how many votes
each person may cast Under ihis new provision, when converning a
meeting the Company must specify a ime, not mere than 48 hours before
the ime of the meeting (excluding any pan of a day that 1s not a working
day) by which a person must be entered on the register of members in
order 10 have the nght to attend or vole al the mesting This reflects a new
provision introciuced by the Shareholders Rights Regulatons

27 - Indemnity (Article 186 2}

The New Articles include a provision allowing the Company to ndemnify
a director io meei expenditure mcurred in defending himsell in ralation to
cnminal and cvil proceedings or against actions by regulatory authornties

28 Distnbution of assets otherwise than in cash {former Article 161)

The Current Articles contain prowisions dealing with the distribution of
assets in kind In the event of the Company goung into hquidation These
provisions have been removed in the New Articles on the grounds that in
the situation in which a distnbution in kind 1s being contemplated 1 1S ikelty
to be done only with unarimity or as part of a scheme and can therelore
be better deall with a1 the time than legistated for i advance




Shareholders’ profile

Shareholdings
1-5000 2,005 (3 0%}
5007 - 75 000 185 (2 9%) Dwectors 53 2%
25 001 ~ 50,000 34 (1 6%) Institutions 44 0%
50 001 — 100 000 26 (2 6%) Indwmiduals 28%
100 001 - 500,000 44 (13 6%)
500 001 — 1,000 000 B (7 1%)
1000001 -3000,000 B8(162%)
more than 3,000 000 2 directors (53 0%)
The above information was compiled from the register as at 6th July 2010
10 year financial record
Results note 2 note 2 note 2 note 2 note 1
2010 2009 2008 2007 2008 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
£000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Overseas revenue 170,957 158,988 189,137 165,094 164,322 144,438 118,88t 100,969 94,769 113,133
UK and Iretand revenue 10,650 11,259 12,620 11789 11,513 10,361 8,820 9,671 9,721 12,215
Total revenue 181,607 171,247 201,157 180,883 175835 154,799 127701 110,640 104,490 125348
Operating profit 28,095 5 891 37.335 29,729 35 468 26,307 18 053 165,644 13 448 27,943
Profit belore 1ax 28,725 8,843 41,715 32,672 38,102 31,733 20,146 17,799 16,062 30,795
Taxation 5,745 2,105 8 309 6,532 7.621 8,297 4,023 3,454 880 6,082
Profit {or the year 22,980 6,738 33,406 26,140 30,481 25,436 16,123 14,345 15,182 24,713
Capital employed 2010 2009 2008 2007 2008 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'0c0
Share capial 14,558 14 558 14,658 14,558 14,558 i4 558 14,558 14 5568 14 558 14,558
Share premium 42 a2 42 a2 42 42 42 42 42 42
Reservas 144,021 129,162 151725 153400 128,136 110857 93,110 90,626 93,085 94 722
Shareholders {unds 158,621 143762 166,325 168,000 142736 125457 107,710 105,226 107,685 108,322
Statistics 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Overseas sales as a
percentage of total sales 94 1% 93 4% 94 0% 93 5% 93 5% 93 3% 93 1% 91 3% 90 7% 90 3%
Basic earnings per share 316p 83p 45 9p 359p 41 9p 34 9p 22 1p i97p 20 9p 340p
Proposed dwvidend 17 6p 776p 2539 2287p 2178p  1980p 1800p 1670p 1590p 15 14p
per share
Notes

1

For the year 2005 and onwards the financial statements have been prepared under adopted IFRS Financial statements for the years
prior to 2005 were prepared under UK GAAP and have not been adjusted to adopted IFRS

The results and basic earnings per share for the years 2007 to 2010 exclude the exceptional tems These were 2007 and 2008 -
pension curiatment credits (2007 £19 5m 2008 £1 3m), 2009 - redundancy costs {£4 1m), and 2010 - imparment write-down (£1 7m)



Designed and produced by Farrow Branding

Printed by Park Lane Press using the waterless printing method and vegetable oil-based inks
which eliminales water consumption and the retease of volaide organic compounds (VOCs) into
the atmosphere This Annual repoert 15 printed on Perfect Image FSC (Forest Stewardship Council)
which prowvides the independent assurance of responsitle forest management

Park Lane Press are certified to ISO 14001 for ther environmental management programme

Renishaw plc

New Mills, Wotton-under-Edge
Gloucestershire GL12 8JR
United Kingdom

T +44 (0) 1453 524524

F +44 {0} 1453 524901

E uk@renishaw com

www renishaw com




